
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 10, 2016, 7:00 P.M. 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of September 26, 2016 MOTION Pg. 18 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. E-ticket Program (Business Item) Pg. 24 
6C. Road Striping Bid (Business Item) Pg. 37 
6D. CDBG Application (Business Item) Pg. 42 
6E. Monthly Reports (Budget, Check Register, Police, DPW, Building, FANG) Pg. 64 
6F. Facility Collocation Agreement Amendment Pg. 97 
6G. Minutes (Park Board, Police Authority)  Pg. 104 
6H. Sewer Lining Program Proposal and Plan (Business Item) Pg. 114 
6I. Medical Marijuana Legislation Information Pg. 119 
6J. Special Land Use – Gas Regulation Equipment (Business Item)  Pg. 133 
6K. Street Loan Versus Bond Comparison (unofficial) Pg. 153 
6L. Consumers Energy Notice Pg. 154 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. E-Ticket Program Approval RESO Pg. 13 
8B. Road Striping Cooperative Bid Acceptance RESO Pg. 14 
8C. Public Hearing – Community Development Block Grant  
8D. Street Report  

PUBLIC HEARING 
DISC 

8E. Sewer Lining Program Appropriation RESO Pg. 15 
8F. Rent Abatement for Overpayment (Collocation Agreement) RESO Pg. 15 
8G. Special Land Use - Gas Regulation Equipment  RESO Pg. 16 
8H. Set Public Hearing – Metro Police Authority Merger RESO Pg. 17 
8I Police Authority Facility Plan Concept  DISC 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

Next Month Calendar   
Downtown Development Authority: Thursday, October 13, 2016, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 
Fire Board:  Monday, October 17, 2016, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Building    
Police Authority:  Thursday, October 20, 2016, 6:00 p.m., Mundy Township Hall 
City Council:   Monday, October 24, 2016, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   
Police Authority:  Wednesday, October 26, 2016, 10:00 a.m., Mundy Township Hall 
Planning Commission:   Tuesday, November 1, 2016, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 
Park Board:  Wednesday, November 2, 2016, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB   
City Council:   Monday, November 14, 2016, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   

City Council Packet 1 October 10, 2016



City of Swartz Creek 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Regular Council Meeting of Monday, October 10, 2016 - 7:00 P.M. 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE: October 5, 2016 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 

 OUTSTANDING APPEALS (Update)

Appeals that the city is preparing to do full appraisals on are the Topvalco (Kroger) 
property and O’Reilly Auto Parts. These are newer submissions that will take some 
time to resolve themselves.  

I expect a future negotiation for the office building, for which we are awaiting some 
market data (Huizinga Properties). A complete listing of outstanding appeals is as 
follows (updates to this list are pending our assessor’s return from a trip; the raceway 
and golf course are now settled): 

Year Parcel # docket Owner Petitioner's Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable Status
2015 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 765,300      765,300    550,000    550,000    stip pending
2016 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 861,000      859,495    550,000    550,000    
2016 58-31-626-002 16-001553 Huizinga Properties Mark Pendery 131,800      131,800    85,000     85,000     answered 6/21/16
2016 58-36-576-012 16-002714 Topvalco/Kroger H. Adam Cohen 2,239,700   2,044,916  1,100,000 1,100,000 answered 8/2/16
2016 58-31-551-006 16-003390 O'Reilly Auto Parts Thomas Randle 523,900      453,942    150,000    150,000    answered

 STREETS (See Individual Category)

 MORRISH AND BRISTOL SIGNAL (No Change of Status)
We finally received a fully executed copy of the cost sharing agreement for this
signal. As previously indicated, we await action by Consumers Energy prior to the
light installation by Genesee County Road Commission staff.

 2017-2020 TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) (Update)
The three year plan for street funding has been drafted by the county, and the city
has committed to a 20% match for those streets that were awarded funding.

We have a problem with the use of federal funds with Worchester Drive. Unless the
city leaves this section out of the 2017 scope, we will be forced to delay the start
date until May (due to MDOT bid letting and award procedures), and we will be
required to pay prevailing wage on the entire street, thereby adding significant
costs. The engineer recommends we decline the usage of federal funds for this
segment. We can do so without impacting the budget because these funds were not
included in our estimates as revenues. Again, the city could choose to leave this
segment out in 2017 and wait until 2019 as an option to receive the funds.

City Council Packet 2 October 10, 2016



Listed below are the portions selected for federal funding, which include: 

 MORRISH ROAD CLASSIFICATION-BRIDGE CAPACITY (Update) 
Morrish Road has finally been verified by the federal government as a “minor 
arterial”, an upgrade from “major collector”.  I will remove this section from future 
reports. 
 

 2016 STREET BIDS-SCRAP TIRE GRANT (No Change of Status) 
The work is finally completed. We learned quite a bit regarding simultaneous water 
main and street work. We will take some of these lessons and apply them to future 
projects in the form of public education and enhanced waste collection methods. 
The projects were under budget by about $8,000.  This section will be removed from 
future reports barring any changes, questions, or new comments.  
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (Business Item) 

A report from our 2015 fall sewer activities was compiled by Rowe PSC and is 
available in this packet. Based upon previous inspections, we still have about two 
years’ worth of work lined up.  
 
Staff met with Rowe Professional Services Company and Liqui-Force to debrief 
from this year’s inspections and attempted to prioritize the next rehabilitation steps 
in accordance with available funds and the 20 year sewer plan. As you can see from 
the engineer’s report, high priority sewer work is noted on the east side of Seymour 
(Greenleaf) and parts of Chesterfield. The highest priority is given to the part of 
Chesterfield that is in the road right-of-way because of the road work that is 
expected for 2017.  
 
Concerning the proposal pricing, the city continues to benefit from an extension of 
unit costs initially proposed in 2008 and affirmed by the city council at their meeting 
on January 26, 2015. At some point, the contractor will not be able to absorb further 
increases and will be forced to seek rate changes, likely resulting in another request 
for proposals or request for qualifications.  
 
After reviewing the 20 year plan, the engineer’s report, the priorities of staff, and the 
pricing of the rehabilitation, I recommend the city move forward with the fall 2016 
sewer rehabilitation project as proposed. A resolution is included. The cost of this 
year’s improvements is lower than normal at about $125,000, but it will allow for 
expanded work in 2017.  
 

Road 
Point of 

Beginning 
Point of 

End 
Length 
(Miles) Lanes 

Lane 
Feet 

Width 
(Feet) ADT 

Total 
Cost 

Federal 
Match 

Local 
Match 

Worchester Cappy Winston 0.1 2 1056 28 691 $172,474 $137,979 $34,495 
Fairchild Cappy Miller 0.28 2 2956.8 44 2456 $305,104 $247,234 $61,021 

       

Cost 
Totals: $477,578 $385,213 $95,516 

            
     

City Council Packet 3 October 10, 2016



To complete extra sections now is not financially reasonable given the size of those 
added sections. Overall, we are still in good shape for our 20 year plan. Based upon 
preliminary audit findings, we may even be able to accelerate this plan or reduce 
rates in 2017.  
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The authority estimates full operations by summer of 2017, so we may only be a 
couple quarters away from seeing a more sustainable rate structure.  
 
For the most part, the politics and operations of the authority appear stable and 
professional. However, there is still a lingering shadow related to the Flint Water 
Crisis that involves an ongoing state investigation. Hopefully, there are no future 
state interventions that alter operations, costs, or political organization of the 
authority. 
 

 WATER LOSS (Update) 
The water loss is still maintaining a level near 20%.  Our auditors indicate that other 
communities have experienced this problem in Genesee County. One example, 
Clio, finally fixed the problem when the county agreed to decrease pressure. We are 
now pursing this option.  As noted elsewhere, there are larger issues with ensuring 
pressure and flow to the areas west of town, which stress the system. We are 
working with the county to supply additional feeds for this reason. This may also 
allow for lower pressure.   
 
We may also explore billing options in which the county bills the city based upon our 
retail sales, plus an acceptable water loss percentage (10-12%). According to the 
county’s audit, it appears they are selling more water than they are buying from 
Detroit, which seems odd (impossible). As such, this option may be preferred as it 
seems pressure and other factors may be compromising their master meter 
readings, causing more sales than use.  

 
 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (Business Item) 

The police authority met on the morning of September 28th at the PDBMB.  The 
authority has made great headway in producing documentation and policies that are 
required by the agreement. There is a definite sense that things are coming together. 
However, the biggest pieces are still coming together, being the budget and level of 
service (value of police protection units or PPU’s).  
 
Since the Authority is attempting to reach a conclusion on this decision by October 31st, 
they are planning a special meeting of the authority for the purposes of holding a public 
hearing, said meeting to be held on Thursday, October 20, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. at the 
Mundy Township Hall. 
 
Though there is no requirement to do so, I recommend a public hearing of the city 
council at their next regular meeting subsequent to the hearing on the 20th. I have 
included a resolution to this end. 
 
Below are items that the agreement requires (4.03(3)): 
 

City Council Packet 4 October 10, 2016



1. Annual Meeting Calendar 
2. Standard Operating Procedures 
3. Investment Policy 
4. Lien Policy 
5. 911 Agreements/Documents 
6. Mutual Aid Agreements 
7. Lease Agreement (principle office)  
8. Personnel Manual 
9. Rules of Procedure for Governing Body 
10. Ethics Policy 
11. Model Contract for services to other agencies 
12. Collective Bargaining Agreements 

 
Items that are desired to produce a sound budget and to demonstrate the service level 
include: 
 

1. Organization Chart for all staff 
2. Job Descriptions for all positions 
3. Patrol districts, if any 
4. Sample one month schedule 
5. Tentative agreements/proposals for: 

a. Liability Insurance 
b. Workers Compensation 
c. Property Insurance 
d. Payroll, finance, and other professional services 
e. Legal Services 

6. Equipment rental or equipment purchase schedule 
7. Delineated costs of transition (badges, leathers, uniforms, decals, etc.) 

 
If anyone is interested in learning more about the proposed details of the authority prior 
to final proposals and hearings, I encourage you to contact Mr. Clolinger or Mr. 
Atkinson directly. I am also available. 
 

 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (No Change of Status) 
The lighting has been approved, funded, and submitted to Consumers Energy. They 
are taking forever to get this done. The developer has also placed funds into escrow to 
fund the remaining items on the punch list, including curb backfill on Russell and 
sidewalk work.   
 
All lots in Springbrook East have sold. The city is now clear of this project as a land 
owner interest. 
 
The city still owns four lots in Heritage Village. We have no plan for these at this time. 
Perhaps an auction of these lots is in order. In this case, I am not sure if there was an 
intention to share additional revenues with the association or not. The city sold one lot 
in 2014 “at cost.” Purchase agreements with other buyers fell through.  

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

City Council Packet 5 October 10, 2016



The street committee considered this neighborhood at their meeting on August 30th. 
They believe the city should reach out to all property owners with vacant lots.  
However, it is thought that a cost estimate for the required improvements (sanitary and 
storm water) should be prepared beforehand.  City engineer, Lou Fleury, is looking into 
the work previously done to see if the storm water plan is detailed enough to price out. 
At this point, he feels another $6,000 - $8,000 is needed to revisit the plans for the 
current scope and needs.  
 
Gaines Township tentatively agreed to work with us on finding solutions, as had the 
church on Hill Road that may be involved with the location of utilities. I await more 
formal commitments before discussing the specifics of engineering.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (Update) 
This is the last call for fall newsletter ideas. The newsletter should be going to print and 
mailing on the 14th. At this point, I am certain that we will do a write up on the street 
projects for the coming year, as well as routine fall service items. Someone suggested 
an article on the Zika Virus and dog etiquette as well.  
 

 CAPPY LANE LIFT STATION (Update) 
Concrete pads have been poured, the new forcemain has been tied-in, and Consumers 
has installed the service to the site. The project has fallen behind a bit and is not 
expected to be complete until early November. This is still acceptable.  
 
Mr. Svrcek is working to use the generator from this site as replacement for the aging 
generator at the public safety building. He is confident this can occur at a reasonable 
price. 
 

 SUNOCO (Business Item) 
The agreement to allow Exxon Mobile to trespass for a brief period of time (1-3 days) 
for site boring has been executed by all parties!  They intend to conduct borings, 
restore the site, and leave. They will then deliver their findings to us. With that 
information, all parties can plan the next step, if any. I will keep the council informed of 
their progress, if any. 
 
If Exxon desires to access the site in the future to remove the surface and soils, we will 
look to enter into another such agreement in which the city shall seek remuneration for 
the impact of this access on our site and the adjacent infrastructure. If such 
negotiations ensue, I intend to engage our environmental consultant, the environmental 
attorney, and Mr. Gildner on our behalf in order to ensure our position is optimized for 
legal, liability, and financial purposes. I will keep the city council informed.  
 
If no progress is made soon, I will ask the council to abandon the site access 
agreement and move forward with local plans for the site’s use and/or sale. 
 

 STREET PROJECT UPDATES (Business Item) 
This is a standing section of the report on the status of streets as it relates to our 
dedicated levy, 20 year plan, ongoing projects, state funding, and committee work.  
 

City Council Packet 6 October 10, 2016



Winston and Ingalls are now going to bid in 2017. Again, the project scope is LIKELY to 
exceed our 2017 budget, making cuts subsequent to bids necessary.  Concerning 
project add-ons, there are no plans to design or bid traffic circles. However, the 
medians at intersections are likely.  In related news, we have hit a snag with lighting. 
Consumers indicates that the cost to replace about a dozen fixtures is $120,000 - 
$150,000. They have not provided details, drawings, or unit costs. They are also very 
difficult to deal with concerning other options (alternate locations, private conduit 
installation, alternate light poles, etc.).  
 
We are very disappointed with Consumers Energy in general. As the council can relate, 
they are very slow and unresponsive. Prior examples include the delay for lighting a 
Fairchild and Miller, the extended wait for lighting repairs near Meijer and on Paul 
Fortino, and the ongoing wait for action required for the Bristol/Morrish traffic signal. 
Now, we are losing time as it relates to the potential lighting upgrade for Winchester 
Village. I suspect we may need to settle for overhead lights, such as those by Meijer, 
which is a big departure from what the street committee was hoping for. 
 
Another big take-away from this experience is that Consumers infrastructure in the 
Village is old. It is unsightly, less reliable, and difficult to access. We are starting to hear 
rumors that they may need to revisit these overhead lines and poles, but they are 
reluctant to do so because of access issues. I suspect this may become a topic of 
conversation in the future.  
 
In other news, I still have not gotten a definitive answer from the state regarding the 
loan requirement to pay prevailing wages. As noted previously, the State is not certain 
if the city shall need to pay prevailing wages to make use of these loan funds. To do so 
would significantly increase our costs ($216,000 for construction & $8,000 for a special 
audit).   
 
As an alternate, I have contacted a well-respected municipal bonding firm in metro 
Detroit. They indicate that traditional bonding would take 90 days, cost about $50,000 
to underwrite, and result in a ~3% interest rate. Mrs. Korth has crunched the numbers 
to compare this type of bond with our state loan (with higher wage costs) to see how 
they perform side-by-side.  A copy of her findings is included in the packet. If we don’t 
hear from the state by the end of October, I recommend we move forward with bonding. 
Please sound off on the matter if you have thoughts or comments.  
 

 ELMS PARK RENOVATIONS (No Change of Status) 
The restrooms are complete, and the books are closed on this component of the 
project. The remainder of the grant funded improvements will be bid during the winter 
months when the contractor interest and pricing will be in our favor.  While any delay is 
frowned upon, this will enable the improvements to coincide with the Dog Park and Tot 
Lot projects. There should not be any adverse impacts on our grant status.  
 
The dog park has been approved.  The scouts indicated that this should be installed 
early in 2017. The park board will be addressing operating rules/guidelines for this 
facility this summer. In the meantime, we await progress by the scouts. 

 
 CLOCK DONATION (Update) 

City Council Packet 7 October 10, 2016



The clock installation is ongoing!  
 

 FIRE SERVICES BUDGET  (No Change of Status) 
The fire board did not approve their budget at their meeting on September 19th. I expect 
to have this in front of the City Council on October 24th pending another review by the 
fire board on October 17th. They are proposing a 6.9% increase (including some new 
equipment such as phones and a copier).  
 

 WATER TOWER PAINTING  (No Change of Status) 
Bids will be released soon. We expect the tower to be painted beginning in April. The 
process is expected to take about three weeks and will restore the tower to its previous 
condition. 
 

 TRAIL PLANNING CONCEPTS (No Change of Status) 
We await OHM to begin investigating trail options. I suspect they will look for park 
board, planning commission, and general input at some point. I will keep the council 
informed.  
 

 CONSUMERS ENERGY FORESTRY GRANT (Update) 
The grant to support the planting of 25 trees in right of ways has been awarded. The 
trees are planted.  
 

 SPECIAL LAND USE – ESSENTIAL PUBLIC SERVICE (Business Item) 
Consumers Energy applied for a special land use to place gas regulatory equipment on 
Bristol Road at Miller Road. The application was not sufficient for the planning 
commission to make findings at their regular September meeting on the 6th.  There was 
also comment by a few neighbors that were very concerned about fumes, safety, and 
visibility of the equipment. Consumers was able to verbally indicate changes and 
upgrades that would improve the installation. They requested to postpone a 
determination until the next regular meeting, pending a new submission. The planning 
commission agreed.  
 
At the regular meeting of October 4th, the case was continued with additional 
documents, public input, and deliberation. Consumers indicated that the site would 
retain existing vegetation, include new screening, and eliminate the relief valve which 
would eliminate fumes. The proposal objectively met the zoning ordinance 
requirements. After public dialogue and deliberation, the planning commission found 
the proposal to meet all general and specific standards for a special land use. They 
recommend approval of the proposal conditioned upon the removal of all surface debris 
and dead vegetation. I have included the submission packet and a resolution.  
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 MEDICAL MARIJUANA (Update) 
I have attached information relating to the new Medical Marijuana legislation.  Feel 
free to provide input at the meeting.  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 
All of the standard reports are included. Let me know if you have questions.  

City Council Packet 8 October 10, 2016



 
 MINUTES (Update) 

Minutes for the police authority and park board are included. Enjoy!  
 

 LOAN COMPARISON (Update) 
City Treasurer Korth did a quick comparison of the State Infrastructure Bank Loan 
cost next to current traditional bonding costs.  Though the SIB has lower interest 
and no underwriting charges, the added construction costs required by federal 
prevailing wages makes traditional bonding cheaper. As such, I recommend we 
begin the process to pursue bonds if we do not have affirmation that prevailing 
wage is not required by November.  
 

 CONSUMERS ENERGY NOTICE (Update) 
Does anyone read these or ever attend? 
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The commission held their regular meeting on October 4th. The only item of 
business was the Consumers Energy gas regulation equipment proposal for Bristol 
and Miller Roads, near El Potrero. This is discussed above.  
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (No Change of Status) 
The DDA met on August 11th. The board approved one façade improvement grant in 
the amount of $2,500 to the Swartz Creek Art Gallery. The group also discussed the 
Sunoco station, the details of which are described above. There will not be a 
September meeting, with the October meeting scheduled for October 13, 2016.  
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
The zoning board of appeals held their annual meeting on May 18th, 2016. The 
board held this meeting for training purposes only. No other meetings are 
scheduled. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
The park board met on October 5th. Draft minutes are included in the packet. The 
board continued discussion of disc golf at Winshall. Concerning this topic, the board 
appears in favor of endorsing a 9 basket course in Winshall Park, pending 
fundraising.  Recent maintenance projects were also discussed. The board plans to 
meet on November 2nd to go over holiday decorating.  
 
The Recreation Passport Grant work for phase II is pending, as is the dog park. 
Fundraising for the tot lot continues successfully, with a pumpkin sale generating 
over $600 at its event on September 30th and October 1st.  
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (No Change of Status) 
The Board of Review met on July 19th. Mr. Richard Ballreich was selected as the 
Chair of the Board. Four parcels were addressed at the meeting, including principle 
residency exemptions, capping of taxable value, and a disabled veteran exemption. 
The next meeting is scheduled for December 13, 2016. 
 

City Council Packet 9 October 10, 2016



NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT HEARING (Business Item) 
The city is in line to plan for and spend its three year allotment of Federal Community 
Development Block Grant funds.  An application to do so is required by November. 
18th. In years past, we could spend these funds on minor improvements in areas that 
qualified as low to moderate income. Such projects included the streetscapes in 
downtown, the alley parking lot in downtown, and the lighting in front of Elms Park.  
 
Unfortunately, we no longer have such areas according to the census.  We have the 
option to qualify such areas, but this is highly unlikely because a signed survey with 
90% or greater response rate would need to demonstrate greater than 50% low to 
moderate income for a certain geography.    
 
As such, we are limited to spending funds on removing barriers to accessibility in 
public buildings or sidewalk curb-cuts for physical investment (there are very few 
areas to do this). Another option is to allocate funds to home improvements in the 
city (e.g. if a homeowner is cited for a bad roof and can’t afford to replace it, these 
funds could be allocated by the county on our behalf to assist). This may be our 
most viable and impactful option.  
 
Before a decision can be made, we must hold a public hearing. We have scheduled 
a public hearing for the 10th. Based upon input, I will likely have a resolution on 
October 24th or November 14th. 
 

 E-TICKET PROGRAM APPROVAL (Business Item) 
As special memo is attached which describes this program and equipment better 
than I can. In short, the police department is one of two in the county that is still 
using handwritten paper tickets. As noted in the memo, this compromises time, 
money, and safety. This is one of the few areas that our department has been very 
much behind on, and investment is appropriate, with or without, the potential merger.  
 
I agree with the assessment that LexisNexis is the preferred company to provide 
setup for this service. Uniformity among the county and all other agencies is 
preferred, and LexisNexis has an outstanding reputation. Since the costs are split 
between printers, the electronic service, and ongoing maintenance I don’t see any 
benefit monetarily from seeking bids from unknown providers. I have included a 
resolution to move forward.  
 

 RENT ABATEMENT (COLLOCATION AGREEMENT) (Business Item) 
The City has a tenant on the wireless communication tower located on Elms Road, 
by the Creek (south of Miller).  The agreement includes monthly rent, with those 
rents set to increase by 15% every five years.  
 
The tenant discovered that they accidentally escalated their rent prematurely, 
resulting in overpayments. Staff has affirmed this and recognized the credit. 
However, the tenant desires to have the credit recognized through a formal 
amendment to the agreement. They also wish to update the contact information in 

City Council Packet 10 October 10, 2016



the notice section.  I have no issues with amending the agreement as indicated. I 
have included a resolution to make it so. 
 

 ROAD STRIPING COOPERATIVE BID ACCEPTANCE (Business Item) 
Overband crack sealing is underway. The city needs to follow this up with new line 
painting to delineate travel lanes and other markings that might be compromised by the 
sealant.  The city should also mark the rest of the streets in town while we are at it so 
we might benefit from the economies of scale for this maintenance activity.  
 
We have a good standing practice of piggy-backing with the Genesee County Road 
Commission bid for this work. The bids received by the county are attached, and the 
contractor indicated they would honor this unit cost for the city when they are in the 
area working on behalf of the county. As it is with road salt, there is no way the city 
could get this kind of scaled pricing on our own. I recommend we accept the county bid 
in lieu of a separate bidding process. Tom indicates that this contractor has done good 
work for the city in the past. 
 
We did perform crack sealant treatments in 2015, but it is necessary again due to the 
large scale of crack filling that is occurring. We estimate that the scope will be about the 
same this time around. The unit prices for 2016 are the same as in 2015. The chart 
reflects the estimated units and total costs.  I am requesting approval of the bid based 
upon unit costs in case there are overages that are unanticipated.  
 

Description 
2016 Feet 
Estimate 

2016 
Unit Cost 

2016 Price 
Estimate 

Solid Yellow - $ 
        
63,589.00   $0.043   $2,734.33  

Skip Yellow – 4” 
          
4,881.00   $0.043   $209.88  

Skip White – 4” 
                       
-     $0.060   $   -    

Solid White – 4”  
          
1,905.00   $0.050   $95.25  

Solid White – 6” 
        
37,180.00   $0.043   $1,598.74  

    Totals  107,555.00  
 

 $4,638.20  
 

 POLICE AUTHORITY FACILITY PLAN CONCEPT (Business Item) 
As the plan for a merged police authority is developed, one of the key components of 
that operational plan and budget is the general facility plan.  The status quo of shared 
services is to use the police building on Grand Blanc Road as the headquarters and the 
building located at 8100 Civic Drive in the city as a substation or satellite office.  
However, Mundy Township has been considering various building construction and 
purchase scenarios for a few years and has purchased a 14,000 square foot building 
off of Hill Road by the Meijer store.  
 

City Council Packet 11 October 10, 2016



At this point in time, the Authority is considering an operations and maintenance lease 
for this new building in lieu of using the facility on Grand Blanc Road.  However, the 
building will require about $600,000 in upgrades, additions, and renovations to make it 
suitable for use by the authority as a permanent headquarters.  Though Mundy was 
comfortable making the property purchase without assurances due to the perceived 
equity position of the sale, they are understandably reluctant to make this additional 
investment without an understanding of where the authority will be located and how 
some of the personal property costs might be expenses.  
 
As such, some input from the city council is requested. I apologize for the short notice. 
As the council knows, I was not a fan of a building change early in the process. 
However, the costs, location, and benefits of this particular facility offer many selling 
points. What the township is seeking information on is whether the city would entertain 
taking an equity position in the building and/or tenant improvements. Doing so would 
better secure the investment and insulate the authority from paying the improvement 
costs out of their budget. Not doing so would make the investment too risky for Mundy 
or could result in expenses being passed to the authority (and the city indirectly, who 
would then not have an equity share). 
 
At this point, I do not have details. However, I will do my best to describe the concept at 
the meeting with the intent of getting some feeling from the council on how we might 
proceed.  
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests, Comments, and Notes    
   

Dog Licenses: We are going to get out of the business of providing these as a 
service. We do fewer and fewer every year due to limitations on what licenses 
we can provide and when. Last year, we only issued six.  It is not a valuable 
service anymore and requires a disproportionate amount of time investment 
given the alternative options pet owners have elsewhere. 
 

City Council Packet 12 October 10, 2016



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 10, 2016, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 161010-4A MINUTES – SEPTEMBER 26, 2016 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, September 26, 2016, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 161010-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of October 10, 2016, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 161010-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of October 
10, 2016, including reports and communications, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 161010-8A E-TICKET PROGRAM APPROVAL 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek Police Department staff find that upgrading the 
ticket issuing system to an electronic format would make citations faster and safer; and 
 

City Council Packet 13 October 10, 2016



WHEREAS, the Director of Court Operations in Genesee County recommends the 
City convert to the LexisNexis E-ticket system which the other local units in the county 
use; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager concurs that this service is specialized and is not of the 
nature of a public work or physical improvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Ordinance Section 2-402(a)2 enables the city council can approve 
unbid expenses of $5,000 or more under certain circumstances. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby approves the Law enforcement Agency Agreement and accompanying quote, 
in the amount of $6,076.40, that would provide for E-ticket services and printers in four 
city patrol vehicles, and further directs the City Manager to execute the Agreement and 
Quote.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 161010-8B ROAD STRIPING COOPERATIVE BID ACCEPTANCE  

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to properly and adequately mark its streets with 
paint for lane delineation and related purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process requires approximately 107,555 lineal feet of various 
pavement markings to be applied to the city streets to complete this process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-406 
provides for and encourages cooperative government purchasing practices; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Road Commission accepts and awards bids for the 
purchase of pavement markings to public rights of way; and 

 
WHEREAS, bids received on September 2, 2015 indicate that M&M Pavement 
Marking, Inc is the successful low bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS, the unit costs bid to the GCRC for 2015-2016 have been made available 
to the City and the city council finds that the lineal foot costs listed cannot be matched 
if attempts were made to bid on the open market or through private sources. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek City accept the Genesee 
County Road Commission’s cooperative purchasing extension for the purchase of 
pavement marking services from M&M Pavement Marking, Inc., said contract to be 
based upon the unit costs listed therein, expenses to be distributed to the Local and 
Major Street funds proportionate to use at the direction of the City’s Finance Director. 

City Council Packet 14 October 10, 2016



 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 1610108E  SEWER LINING PROJECTS 
 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the city selected Liqui-Force Services Inc., to perform certain sewer 
inspections and repairs in 2008 based upon a competitive request-for-proposal 
process that included fixed unit costs for services; and 
 
WHEREAS, based upon the quality and reliability of work performed, Liqui-Force has 
remained the city’s contractor for these services past the original 2012 contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, Liqui-Force has again agreed to extend their unit costs through June of 
2017 for the purpose of completing work on the sanitary sewer system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council agreed to extend said units prices at their regular meeting 
on January 26, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional sewer rehabilitation work has been identified by staff and the 
city engineer based upon 2015-2016 inspections and consultation with the 20 year 
sewer plan, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves 
the proposal and associated unit costs, in part, to perform rehabilitation on the sanitary 
sewer system as outlined for Chesterfield MH 192-188 and MH 196, as well as 
Seymour and Greenleaf, on the updated proposal dated September 27, 2016, in the 
amount of $123,825, plus a 20% contingency, funds to be appropriated to the Sewer 
591 fund. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 161010-8F RENT ABATEMENT (COLLOCATION AGREEMENT) 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City entered into an agreement with New Cingular Wireless PCS, 
LLC, (Tenant) a Delaware Corporation, successor by merger to AT&T Wireless PCS, 
LLC, in March of 2000 for the purposes of leasing land at 4355 South Elms Road for 
the purpose of operating wireless communication facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement contained lease payments and corresponding rent 
escalators every five years to adjust for inflationary factors; and  

City Council Packet 15 October 10, 2016



 
WHEREAS, the Tenant increased their rent payments per the escalator clause 
prematurely, resulting in overpayments in the amount of $15,840.93, which the city 
staff has also recognized; and  
 
WHEREAS, City and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to address this rent 
overpayment and to update/modify the notice section. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approves the First Amendment to Telecommunications Facility Collocation and 
Landlord/AWS Agreement as included and recorded in the October 10, 2016 city 
council packet, and further directs the Mayor to execute this Agreement on behalf of 
the City. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 161010-8G CONSUMERS GAS REGULATOR SPECIAL LAND USE 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the city received a proposal to install gas regulator utility equipment at 
6133 Bristol Road parcel 58-31-526-010, said land zoned Single Family Residential 
(R-1), and; 

 
WHEREAS, the project is a special land use within the R-1 district submission of a 
site plan sufficient to make findings for review of the special land use, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the planning commission held a public hearing related to this matter at 
its regular meeting on September 6, 2016, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the planning commission, in reviewing the application materials and 
review criteria in Zoning Ordinance, including Article 30, among other sections, made 
the following findings related to the proposal to place gas regulation equipment at this 
site: 
 

1. The proposal meets general standards for special land use approval 
2. The proposal meets specific standards for special land use approval, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council agrees with these findings. 

 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approves the 
special land use application, dated July 14, 2016, amended September 2016, subject 
to the following conditions in this resolution: 
 

1. Removal of all surface debris and dead vegetation shall be completed prior to 
occupancy. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 

City Council Packet 16 October 10, 2016



Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

Resolution No. 161010-8H SET PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING POLICE MERGER 

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council entered into an interlocal agreement 
with Mundy Township in October of 2014 for the purpose of analyzing a potential 
merger of the Swartz Creek and Mundy police departments into a separate authority; 
and 

WHEREAS, prior to any potential transfer of assets, employee, or powers (commonly 
referred to as the effective date), the authority is to provide certain plans, documents, 
financial information, and policies; and, 

WHEREAS, the authority is also charged with hosting a public hearing regarding these 
documents and findings, said public hearing being scheduled for October 20, 2016 at 
6:00 p.m. at the Mundy Township Hall; and, 

WHEREAS, the city council desires to hold an additional public hearing on this matter, 
subsequent to the authority’s hearing and prior to a vote of the city council. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
directs the City Clerk to post notice of a public hearing of the City Council for the 
purposes of hearing persons interested in the impact of the potential police department 
merger, said hearing to occur at or shortly after 7:00 p.m. on Monday, October 24, 
2016 in the city council chambers of the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building located at 
8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan. 

Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

City Council Packet 17 October 10, 2016



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 09/26/2016 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, 

Porath. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None.  
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Connie Eskew, 

City Attorney Mike Gildner.  
    
Others Present: Tommy Butler, Steve Shumaker, Sharon Shumaker, Bob 

Plumb, Dennis Cramer, Lania Rocha, Jim Barclay, 
Steven Long, Boots Abrams, Jo Holmquist, Tom 
Holmquist, Fay Porath, Lou Fleury.  

.  
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
          Resolutions No. 160926-01       (Carried) 
  
                      Motion by Councilmember Porath 
                      Second by Councilmember Gilbert    
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday September 12, 2016 to be circulated and placed on 
file. 

 
YES:   Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Abrams. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution No. 160926-02       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented for the 
Regular Council Meeting of September 26, 2016, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 

City Council Packet 18 October 10, 2016



YES:   Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Abrams, Florence. 
  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 160926-03       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Florence 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams   
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of 
September 26, 2016, including reports and communications and verbal updates to 
be circulated and placed on file.  
 
Discussion took place.  
 

YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Abrams, Florence, Gilbert. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Jo & Tom Holmquist resides at 5373 Miller Road, presented Mayor Pro Tem Abrams with 
a plaque from the Holmquist family in appreciation for his 32 years of loyalty and 
commitment. 
 
Boots Abrams resides at 5352 Greenleaf Drive, voiced her concerns about the possibility 
of having a turnabout at Winston/Chesterfield and is opposed to it.  
 
POLC LABOR CONTRACT LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

Resolution No. 160926-04       (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek entered into agreement with the Police 
Officers Labor Council on April 30, 2012 to provide for conditions and provisions of 
employment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement expired on June 30, 2016 and was 
not previously negotiated per mutual agreement so as not to interfere with ongoing 
labor negotiations with the Metro Police Authority of Genesee County (Authority); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties are desirous of a continuing working agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, a potential transfer of covered employees to the Authority is pending 
review by the City of Swartz Creek and Township of Mundy 
 

City Council Packet 19 October 10, 2016



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby approve the Letter of Agreement Between the City of Swartz Creek and the 
Police Officers Labor Council, representing Swartz Creek Police Officers as 
recorded in the City Council Packet of September 26, 2016, and further, authorize 
and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the letter on behalf of the City.   
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Abrams, Florence, Hicks. 
  NO: Gilbert.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
SUNOCO PROPERTY SITE LICENSE AGREEMENT   
 
 Resolution No. 160926-05       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams 

 
WHEREAS, the city resolved to acquire real property, commonly known as the 
“Sunoco Gas Station” located at 5012 Holland Drive, parcel 58-02-529-017, from 
the Genesee County Treasurer’s Office on June 22, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city subsequently submitted a Baseline Environmental Assessment 
and registered three underground gasoline storage tanks and one underground fuel 
oil tank with the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the community desires to eliminate the blight and repurpose this site as 
a means to eliminate potential hazards and nuisances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city removed the structures and tanks from the site in the summer 
of 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ExxonMobile Oil Corporation desires to engage in the cleanup of 
this site and potential surroundings and has  a need to access the site in order to 
conduct soil borings in order to ascertain the needs of such a cleanup; and  
 
WHEREAS, the city, via the city’s primary legal counsel, has retained the services 
of specialized legal counsel to recommend a course of action; and 
 
WHEREAS, said legal counsel has proposed and negotiated a site license 
agreement that will empower ExxonMobile Oil Corporation to continue due diligence 
on the site while protecting the interests of the city and general public as the first 
step in a potential site cleanup. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
approves the Limited Site License Agreement as recorded in the City Council 
Packet of September 26, 2016 and directs the Mayor to execute said agreement on 
behalf of the city, upon proof of Exxon first executing the agreement. 
 

City Council Packet 20 October 10, 2016



Discussion Ensued.  
 

   YES: Pinkston, Porath, Abrams, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
CDBG PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 Resolution No. 160926-06       (Carried) 

 
  Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
  Second by Gilbert 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council receives an allocation of 
Community Development Block Grant Funds from Genesee County on a three year 
cycle; and 
 
WHEREAS, the such funds must be applied for, awarded, and used in accordance 
with guidelines set by the county on eligible purposes; and, 
 
WHEREAS, $28,819 in funds are available to the City of Swartz Creek, pending an 
application to use such funds on eligible projects by November 18, 2016; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the city council must hold a public hearing prior to application in which 
public comment related to the use of such funds, previous projects, and alternate 
projects can be heard. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby directs the City Clerk to post notice of a public hearing of the City Council for 
the purposes outlined in the application packet, said hearing to occur at or shortly 
after 7:00 p.m. on Monday, October 10, 2016 in the city council chambers of the 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building located at 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, 
Michigan. 
 

   YES: Porath, Abrams, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
2017 STREET PROJECTS SCOPE AMENDMENT 
 
 Resolution No. 160926-07                (Carried) 
  

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains a system of 
major streets, local streets, and water main, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city has a twenty year asset management plan on file that is funded 
in part by a twenty year street levy, and  
 

City Council Packet 21 October 10, 2016



WHEREAS, this plan, which includes various levels of preventative maintenance, 
preservation, and reconstruction on city streets, as well as water main replacement, 
was assessed by the Street Project Selection Committee at a series of meetings 
occurring between July 12, 2016 and September 13, 2016, and 
 
WHEREAS, the committee made a series of recommendations regarding specific 
preventative maintenance, preservation, and reconstruction projects for completion 
in 2017 (year two), as well as subsequent projects for future years, and 
 
WHEREAS, new findings relating to Winston Drive and Ingalls Street were 
considered by the committee, and a subsequent recommendation to add Winston 
Drive and Ingalls Street segments (with new sidewalk) was made by the committee. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
affirms the recommendation of the Street Project Selection Committee to 
commence engineering work and bidding for the following streets and water main: 
 

Street    Repair Type  Est. Construction Cost  
Winston   Reconstruct  $200,000 
Ingalls    Preservation  $216,000 
 
    Total:   $416,000 
 
Water Main   Repair Type  Est. Cost    
Winston   Replace  $150,000 
 
    Total:   $150,000 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the engineering 
proposal by ROWE Professional Services Company, dated September 20, 2016, for 
an amount not to exceed $34,220 for design and bidding services related to the 
above projects, with appropriations to be made to Fund 101 (General), Fund 202 
(Major Streets), Fund 204 (Municipal Streets) and Fund 590 (Water) as directed by 
the finance director. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs the Mayor to execute 
said engineering proposal on behalf of the city.  
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Abrams, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
CDBG SIGNATURE CARDS 
 

Resolution No. 160926-08                (Carried) 
 
           Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Abrams  

  Motion by Councilmember Florence 

City Council Packet 22 October 10, 2016



 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek participates in the Genesee County 
Community Development Program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Community Development Program has requested 
that we update our authorized signature cards. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following individuals be authorized 
to request reimbursement from the Community Development Block Grant Program: 

 
1. Connie Eskew, City Clerk 
2. Adam Zettel, City Manager 
3. Deanna Korth, City Treasurer 
4. Thomas Svrcek, City Director of Public Services 

 
   YES:  Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Abrams.  

NO: Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
None. 
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Gilbert commented about the water.  
 
Councilmember Florence mentioned about Officer Paul and Rosco’s visit to Springbrook’s 
annual meeting. 
 
Councilmember Porath commented on the hazardous waste pickup next month.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Abrams thanked the Holmquist’s for the plaque it was a great honor and it 
has been a joy to serve the city.  
 
Adjournment 
 
 Resolution No. 160926-09       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular meeting at 7:57 pm. 
 
  Unanimous Voice Vote. 
 
   
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor     Connie Eskew, City Clerk   
    

City Council Packet 23 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 24 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 25 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 26 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 27 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 28 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 29 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 30 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 31 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 32 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 33 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 34 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 35 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 36 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 37 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 38 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 39 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 40 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 41 October 10, 2016



 

Genesee County 
Metropolitan Planning Commission 

 

Community Development Block Grant Program  
 

2017 Group 2  

Construction Projects Application 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Due: November 18, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
An equal opportunity organization 

City of Flushing, City of Swartz Creek, Clayton Township, Flint Township, 

Flushing Township, Gaines Township, Mt. Morris Township, Mundy 

Township, and Village of Gaines 

City Council Packet 42 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 2 

Index 

What is CDBG?           3 

What Projects Are Eligible Under CDBG?        4 

What Are The Public Involvement Requirements for CDBG Project Proposals?   5 

What Is My Community’s Estimated Allocation Amount?      6 

What Information Should Be Provided For Each CDBG Project Proposal?    7 

Attachment A – Genesee County Low and Moderate Income Areas Map   8 

Attachment B – Genesee County CDBG Funding Groups 2016 - 2018 Map   9 

Attachment C – Income Survey Form        10 

Attachment D – Sample Public Notice of Local Public Needs Hearing    11 

Attachment E – Sample Press Release for Local Public Needs Hearing    12 

Attachment F – Sample Attendance List for Local Public Needs Hearing   13 

2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application Packet   15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 43 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 3 

What is CDBG? 

 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides Community Development Block 

Grant (CDBG) funds to entitlement community grantees, like Genesee County, to carry out a wide range 

of community development activities. These activities are directed primarily toward revitalizing 

neighborhoods, encouraging economic development, and providing improvements to community 

facilities and services in low to moderate income areas. 

 

To determine annual CDBG award amounts, HUD uses a funding formula comprised of several measures 

of community need. These measures include: the extent of poverty, population, housing, and 

overcrowding. 

 

CDBG funds must be used for activities that benefit low and moderate-income areas or households 

(Attachment A). In addition, each CDBG assisted activity must meet at least one of the following National 

Objectives for the program:   

 

1. Provide benefit to low and moderate income persons and households;  

2. Aid in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight conditions; or  

3. Address community development needs having a particular urgency (urgent need). 

 

Genesee County CDBG funds are allocated between 29 local units of government on a rotating, three-

year cycle (Attachment B).  Currently the three-year cycle of funding is 2016 - 2018, with 2017 as the 

second year in the cycle.   

 

Questions concerning the Construction Project Application can be directed to Ms. Claire Wilke at 810-

766-6564.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

CDBG Program 

Construction Projects Public Service Projects 

Applications are only available to 

each municipality according to the 

funding cycle of their designated 

“group” (See Map) 

 

2016 – Group 1 

 

2017 – Group 2 

 

2018 – Group 3 

 

 

Applications are available to ALL 

municipalities at the same time, on 

a 3-year application cycle. Funds 

are dispersed equally over 3 years. 
 

 

 

2016 – ALL Municipalities 

 

 

City Council Packet 44 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 4 

What Projects Are Eligible Under CDBG?  

 

Projects that are located in low to moderate income areas (Attachment A), or directly benefiting low to 

moderate income persons or households, and that meet a National Objective are typically eligible under 

the CDBG program.  The following list can help you identify the types of community needs you may be 

able to address with a CDBG funded project.  Please keep in mind that this list is not all-inclusive and new 

project ideas are encouraged.  

 

General Projects  

 

 Sidewalk Improvements 

 Street Improvements 

 Water/Sewer Improvements 

 Code enforcement activities 

 Improvements to lighting in public places 

 Improvements/additions to neighborhood parks/recreational facilities 

 Acquisition of real property 

 Special Assessment Assistance 

 Construction/Rehabilitation of publicly owned buildings (not used for general government) 

 Streetscape improvements in neighborhoods/commercial districts 

 Purchase firefighting equipment 

 Demolition and clearance activities  

 Single family housing rehabilitation/improvements 

 Provide housing to individuals and families with special needs  

 

 

Projects in Areas Not Designated as Low to Moderate Income & Income Surveys 

 

If there is an area within your community that is believed to be a low to moderate income area, but did 

not qualify as such through the Census, you may choose to send income surveys (Attachment C) to each 

household in that area, in order to document low to moderate income status.   

 

The following instructions will assist you though the income survey process: 

 

 Determine the area to be surveyed 

 

 Divide the area into streets or street segments 

Example: 3 miles on Oak Street may be divided into three 1-mile segments, such as: Oak from 

Maple to Cherry; Oak from Cherry to Birch; and Oak from Birch to Hickory 

 

 Identify the street address on each survey form to be delivered  

 

 Mail or hand-deliver survey forms to each household, including a postage-paid return envelope 

addressed to Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission, 1101 Beach Street, Room 223, 

Flint, MI 48502-1470 

 

 Inform GCMPC staff of the addresses surveyed on each street or segment  

 

 A 90% return rate must be accomplished in order to determine low to moderate income status 

 

 51% of the returned surveys must reflect low to moderate income households in order to achieve 

low to moderate income area status 

City Council Packet 45 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 5 

 

 GCMPC staff will do a visual house count and general inspection of the area after obtaining 

documentation of low to moderate income area status 

 

If you would like to propose a project in an area that requires income surveying, surveys should be mailed 

out no later than the 2017 CDBG Program Application submittal date.  GCMPC staff is available to answer 

any questions you may have regarding income surveys and how they should be administered.  

 

 

Fire Station Projects & Fire Runs 

 

In order to determine project eligibility for improvements to fire stations, the building of new fire stations 

or for the purchase of firefighting equipment, fire run data for that station must be submitted with the 

2017 CDBG Program Application.  Fire runs should cover a one year time period of May 1, 2015 – April 30, 

2016, with 51% or more of the fire runs having been to low or moderate income areas.  An electronic 

version (Microsoft Excel) of the fire run data must be submitted via email to Ms. Claire Wilke, Planner II at 

CWilke@co.genesee.mi.us.  

 

 

What Are The Public Involvement Requirements for CDBG Project Proposals?  

 

All potential projects that your community is considering submitting for funding must be mentioned, 

discussed and recorded within minutes at a local public needs hearing, in order to be considered for 

approval under the Genesee County CDBG Program.  The following requirements must be followed for 

properly conducting a public needs hearing:  

 

Prior to the Local Public Needs Hearing 

 A public notice of the hearing must be published in your local paper at least one week in 

advance of the hearing (Attachment D) 

 

 Request an Affidavit from the publisher to submit as proof of publication with your CDBG 

Application 

 

At the Local Public Needs Hearing 

 Must be held as part of an official meeting of your governing body 

 

 The requirements of the Open Meetings Act and any other applicable state or local laws must be 

adhered to 

 

 An attendance list must be signed by all those attending the hearing (Attachment F) 

 

 The public must be advised of the estimated amount of 2017 CDBG funds available to your 

community 

 

 The public must be provided with a list of the types of eligible projects under CDBG 

 

 The public must be given an opportunity to express community development needs and to 

propose projects 

 

 The public should be asked for comments on your past CDBG activities  

 

 Any potential projects to be included in the CDBG Application must be discussed at this hearing 

City Council Packet 46 October 10, 2016

mailto:CWilke@co.genesee.mi.us


Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 6 

 

 Detailed meeting minutes must be taken and submitted with the application 

 

After the Local Public Needs Hearing 

 Keep the official minutes and attendance sheet on file 

 

 Review and consider all proposed projects, including those from public comment, to determine 

which projects your community should apply for and the dollar amount of each 

 

 At a subsequent official public meeting of your governing body, pass a resolution reflecting the 

selected projects and the amount or percentage of funding to be dedicated to each project 

 

 Detailed meeting minutes should be taken at the subsequent public meeting, including the 

award amount or percentage of funding to be dedicated to each project 

 

 Submit to GCMPC, with this application, proof of a public notice publication, meeting minutes 

from the local public needs hearing, attendance list from the local public needs hearing, and the 

minutes or resolution from the subsequent meeting where the proposed projects and dollar figures 

were approved 

 

 

 

What Is My Community’s CDBG Allocation Amount? 

 

Genesee County CDBG funds are allocated between 29 local units of government on a rotating, three-

year cycle.  The three-year cycle of funding is 2016 - 2018, with May 1, 2017 – April 30, 2018 as the second 

year.  

 

The following communities are in Group 2 of the 2016 - 2018 funding cycle:  City of Flushing, City of Swartz 

Creek, Clayton Township, Flint Township, Flushing Township, Gaines Township, Mt. Morris Township, Mundy 

Township, and the Village of Gaines.   

 

The following table reflects the estimated 2017 CDBG Allocation of each community in Group 2.  

 

 

 

Community Estimated 2017 

Allocation 

City of Flushing $37,265 

City of Swartz Creek $28,819 

Clayton Township $42,219 

Flint Township $212,502 

Flushing Township $49,686 

Gaines Township $30,592 

City Council Packet 47 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 7 

Mt. Morris Township $183,546 

Mundy Township $70,706 

Village of Gaines $2,781 

 

 

The dollar amounts listed in the table are only estimates and are subject to change based on actual 

funding received by Genesee County from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Approximately 15% of the allocation can be used for 3 year public service projects.  

 
 

What Information Should Be Provided For Each CDBG Project Proposal?  

 

A 2017 Genesee County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Project Proposal form should be 

completed for each proposed 2017 CDBG project.  One proposal form should be completed, in its 

entirety, for each project.  Incomplete project proposals will not be considered for funding.  

 

One 2017 CDBG Project Proposal form is provided in the application packet.  Communities proposing 

more than one 2017 CDBG project may make copies of the Project Proposal form or additional forms 

may be requested electronically from GCMPC staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 48 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 8 

Attachment A – Genesee County Low and Moderate Income Areas Map 

 

City Council Packet 49 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 9 

Attachment B – Genesee County CDBG Funding Groups 2016 – 2018 Map 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 50 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 10 

Attachment C – Income Survey Form 
 

 

 

Dear Resident of:              

(address) 

 

The                                                               is conducting an Income Survey to assess the need 

       (unit of government)            for public improvements in your area. 

 

Please indicate the total number of persons comprising your household.  Then indicate in the appropriate 

box, listed under income, your gross household income from all sources.  Gross income includes all monies 

earned (before taxes) by all persons residing within your household.   

 

 Number of Persons in Household:        

 

  Total Household Income: 

 

       $ 0 - $29,500 

     

       $29,501- $33,700 

     

       $33,701- $37,900 

     

       $37,901- $42,100 

     

      $42,101- $45,500 

     

       $45,501- $48,850 

     

       $48,851- $52,250 

     

       $52,251- $55,600 

 

       $55,601+ 

 

 

Signature:         Date:      

 

An envelope has been provided for your use in returning this form to the Genesee County Metropolitan 

Planning Commission (GCMPC) Room 223, 1101 Beach Street, Flint, MI 48502.  Thank you for your 

cooperation.   

 

Very truly yours, 

 

        
                               (Local Official) 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 51 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 11 

Attachment D – Sample Public Notice of Local Public Needs Hearing 

 

Public Notice 

 

The (Name of Local Unit of Government) will hold a public needs hearing on the use of its 2017 Federal 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program funds on (Date) at (Time) at (Location and 

Address). 

 

The purpose of the hearing is to offer an opportunity for citizens to express their ideas on community 

needs and project proposals concerning the use of Federal CDBG funds for the 2017 Program Year.  The 

hearing will also provide an opportunity for citizens to comment on past CDBG projects. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 52 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 12 

Attachment E – Sample Press Release for Local Public Needs Hearing 
 

 

Press Release 

 

(Name of Local Unit of Government) to hold Community Development Hearing 

 

The (Name of Local Unit of Government) will hold a Community Development Public Needs Hearing on 

(Date) at (Time) at (Location and Address). 

 

The purpose of the hearing is to offer an opportunity for citizens to express their ideas on community 

needs and project proposals concerning the use of Federal Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) funds for the 2017 Program Year.  

 

The (Name of Local Unit of Government) expects to receive approximately $ (Estimated 2017 Project 

Funding) of 2017 CDBG funds.  The funds are provided by the Genesee County Metropolitan Planning 

Commission Community Development Program from an annual entitlement grant received from the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  

 

The funds are intended primarily for projects in low and moderate income neighborhoods.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 53 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 13 

Attachment F – Sample Attendance List for Local Public Needs Hearing 

 
 

 

(Name of Local Unit of Government) 2017 Community Development Block Grant Public Needs Hearing  

 

Attendance List 

 

 Name  Address 

 

 

1.                

 

2.                

 

3.                

 

4.                

 

5.                

 

6.                

 

7.                

 

8.                

 

9.                

 

10.                

 

11.                

 

12.                

 

13.                

 

14.                

 

15.                

 

16.                

 

17.                

 

18.                

 

19.                

 

20.                
 

 

 

City Council Packet 54 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please complete Pages 15 – 22 and return to Genesee 

County Metropolitan Planning Commission by: 
 

 

Friday, November 18, 2016 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 55 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 15 

 

 

 

2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Application Packet 

 
 

Ms. Sheila Taylor, Principal Planner 

Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission 

1101 Beach Street, Room 223 

Flint, MI 48502 

 

 

Ms. Taylor,  

 

Please find enclosed a completed 2017 Community Development Block Grant Program Application for: 

 

 

(Name of Local Unit of Government) 

 

 

Below, I have marked each of the required items that are included within this application: 

 

 Completed Project and Funding Summary Page 

 

 Completed Public Service Project Proposal   or  N/A 

 

 Completed Project Proposal Form for each proposed 2017 project 

 

 Local Needs Hearing Proof of Public Notice Publication  

 

 Local Needs Hearing Sign-In Sheet 

 

 Local Needs Hearing Minutes 

 

 Minutes of Meeting Where CDBG Project Funds Were Allocated to each Project  

     (including the name of each project and the dollar amount or percentage of funding for each project)  
 

 Copy of Conflict of Interest Policy 

 

 Income Surveys (if applicable) 

 

 Fire Runs (if applicable) 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signature and Title of Authorized Official Date 

 

    

 

 

  

City Council Packet 56 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 16 

 

Please Return No Later Than Friday, November 18, 2016 
 

 

 

Project and Funding Summary Page 
 

 

 

Local Unit of Government:          Estimated 2017 Allocation:  $   

 

 

 

Public Service Project:     Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

Project Proposal 1:      Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

Project Proposal 2:      Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

Project Proposal 3:      Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

Project Proposal 4:      Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

Project Proposal 5:      Amount: $    Percent of Allocation:  % 

 

 

          TOTAL: $       TOTAL:         % 

    

 

 

 Summation of Proposed Project Amounts Match Total 2017 Allocation 

 

 

 Summation of Proposed Project Percentages Is Equal to 100% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 57 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Proposal Form for  

Construction and Improvement Projects  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 58 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 18 

 

 

 

Project Proposal Form 
 

Project Information 

 

1. Community:  

   

2. Project Name:  

 

3. 2017 CDBG Funds to be Allocated:  

 

4. Percent of 2017 CDBG Funds to be Allocated:  

 

5. Other Project Financing: 

a. State:  

 

 

b. Local:  

 

 

c. Other:  

 

6. Project Location: 

a. Address:  

 

 

b. Census Tract(s):  

 

 

c. Block Group Numbers:  

 

 

7. Geographic area to be served (describe below or include a map):  

 

 

 

 

8. Estimated number of persons and/or households to benefit from this project: 

 

9.  Scope of work (provide as much detail as possible): 

 

 

$ 

 

Dollar Amount: $  

Source:  

Dollar Amount: $  

Source:  

Dollar Amount: $  

Source:  

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 59 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10. Proposed Project Timeline (include all important milestones): 

11. Is this project part of a larger geographically targeted revitalization effort?        Yes         No 

 

12. If you answered “Yes” to question 11, please describe the location, strategy and goals of the 

revitalization plan:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Citizen Participation 

 

13. Was this project discussed at a 2017 CDBG Public Needs Hearing?          Yes         No 

 

14. Was this project discussed at the County 2017 CDBG Public Needs Hearing?  Yes         No 

 

15. Was this project discussed at a previous year’s public needs hearing?  Yes         No 

 

16. Describe your community’s process for addressing complaints about this project (attach copies of any 

and all complaints received regarding this project and the response provided by your community): 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 60 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Relocation 

 

17. Will this project require permanent or temporary displacement of residents?      Yes         No 

 

18. Will this project necessitate the acquisition of private property?     Yes         No 

 

19. Will this project necessitate acquisition of private property for easements?    Yes         No 

 

 

 

Income Surveys and Fire Runs 

 

20. If necessary, were income surveys completed for this project?  Yes         No        N/A  

    

21. If necessary, were fire runs completed for this project?        Yes         No        N/A 

 

Objectives and Outcomes 

 

22. Select the National Objective this Project Meets: 
 

 Provides benefit to low and moderate income persons and households;  
 

 Aids in the prevention or elimination of slums or blight conditions; or 
 

 Addresses community development needs having a particular urgency because existing 

conditions pose a serious and immediate threat to the health or welfare of the community for 

which other funding is not available.  

 

23. Select the Objective of the Genesee County Consolidated Plan this Project Meets: 
 

 Suitable Living:  A suitable living environment is a neighborhood characterized by a healthy 

real estate market, attractive public amenities, a sense of safety and security and where 

residents are involved in neighborhood concerns.   
 

 Decent Housing:  Decent housing activities provide benefits to individuals and families by 

ensuring decent, safe and sanitary housing, opportunities for homeownership, affordable rents 

and a range of housing choices.  
 

 Economic Opportunities:  Economic opportunities build economic power within the 

neighborhood, from supporting the development of small businesses to assisting people in 

getting and maintaining quality jobs.   
 

24. Select the Intended Outcome Related to this Project: 

 

 Improved Availability/Accessibility: Make basic services and amenities available to 

low/moderate income areas, persons or households.   
 

 

City Council Packet 61 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 21 

 Improved Affordability:  Make an activity more affordable to low/moderate income areas, 

persons or households.  
 

 Sustainability:  Using resources in a targeted area to help make the area more viable. 

  

Environmental Considerations 
 

25. Does this project involve a structure more than 50 years old?    Yes         No 

a. If yes, what year was the structure built? __________________ 

 

26. Does this project involve activity at or near a designated historic site?  Yes         No 

 

27. Does this project involve excavation in an archeologically-sensitive area?  Yes         No 

 

28. Does this project involve the conversion of farmland to other uses?    Yes         No 

 

29. Does this project involve ground-disturbing activity?     Yes         No 

If yes, 

 

a. Provide a description of the width, length and depth of proposed ground disturbing activity: 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

b. Previous land use and disturbances: ______________________________________________________ 

c. Current land use and conditions: _________________________________________________________ 

Alternative Analysis 

 

30. Why was this activity site chosen?  

 

 

31. Please list alternative sites for this type of activity, which were examined or discussed at your public 

needs hearing, or previous meetings, as a need and/or a deficiency. 

 

 

32. What alternative means of attaining the improvement were discussed (such as, special assessment 

district, service charges, different media, gravel resurfacing rather than paving, etc.)? 

 

33. Why were alternative means discarded? 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 62 October 10, 2016



Genesee County 2017 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

 22 

34. What would be the results if this project were not carried out? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35. Are there any other projects taking place in the Proposed Project area using federal, state, or local 

funds?  Please describe. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Analysis of Impacts 

 

36. Land Development - Will the Proposed Project increase residential or commercial development?  How 

will cleared land be used? 

 

37. Community Services - Will the Proposed Project enhance those services currently available and will this 

project fulfill an identified need?  Please explain. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 63 October 10, 2016



09/30/2016                             REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      
                                                                                              PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2016                                                      

YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE
2016-17 09/30/2016 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER  AMENDED BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 101 - General Fund
TOTAL REVENUES 2,410,900.06 1,433,652.22 977,247.84 59.47
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,473,976.88 541,005.88 1,932,971.00 21.87
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (63,076.82)    

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 442,400.00 35,716.43 406,683.57 8.07
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 572,199.70 312,065.95 260,133.75 54.54
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (129,799.70)    

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 336,702.00 201,084.96 135,617.04 59.72
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 432,292.08 24,635.65 407,656.43 5.70
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (95,590.08)    

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 608,000.00 548,460.75 59,539.25 90.21
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 608,000.00    

Fund 226 - Garbage Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 380,907.00 341,412.90 39,494.10 89.63
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 427,206.75 92,104.82 335,101.93 21.56
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (46,299.75)    

Fund 248 - Downtown Development Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 67,900.00 1,877.06 66,022.94 2.76
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 67,730.00 4,408.44 63,321.56 6.51
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 170.00    

Fund 265 - Drug Enforcement Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 7,851.00 0.07 7,850.93 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,851.00 1,962.66 5,888.34 25.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00    

Fund 350 - City Hall Debt Fund
TOTAL REVENUES 98,535.00 0.14 98,534.86 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 98,000.00 0.00 98,000.00 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 535.00    

City Council Packet 64 October 10, 2016



09/30/2016                             REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      
                                                                                              PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2016                                                      

YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE
2016-17 09/30/2016 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER  AMENDED BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED
Fund 402 - Fire Equip Replacement Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 30,060.00 29,973.53 86.47 99.71
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 30,060.00    

Fund 590 - Water Supply Fund
TOTAL REVENUES 1,829,950.00 575,432.50 1,254,517.50 31.45
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,056,990.05 548,368.41 1,508,621.64 26.66
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (227,040.05)    

                                                                                    WATER FUND EXPENSE INCLUDE $189,000 IN DEPRECIATION
Fund 591 - Sanitary Sewer Fund
TOTAL REVENUES 1,289,230.00 302,247.80 986,982.20 23.44
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,828,988.88 76,877.78 1,752,111.10 4.20
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (539,758.88)    

                                                                                    SEWER FUND EXPENSE INCLUDE $248,000 IN DEPRECIATION
Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 277,820.00 37,757.15 240,062.85 13.59
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 261,301.00 51,857.01 209,443.99 19.85
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 16,519.00    

Fund 865 - Sidewalks
TOTAL REVENUES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 9,500.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00

500.00    
Fund 866 - Weed Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,800.00 900.00 6,900.00 11.54
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 1,640.00 130.00 1,510.00 7.93

6,160.00    

City Council Packet 65 October 10, 2016



10/03/2016                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              

                                                          CHECK DATE FROM 09/01/2016 ‐ 09/30/2016                                              

Highlighted amount is total for that vendor

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

09/01/2016 42554 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.12

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.09

134.21

09/01/2016 42555 BELL EQUIPMENT CO LEFT/RIGHT ROCKER SWITCH 61.42

09/01/2016 42556 BOBBY G WILLIAMSON TAX OVERPAYMENT 58‐03‐533‐199 45.00

09/01/2016 42557 C & H CONSTRUCTION CO INC WATERMAIN LEAK 5289 OAKVIEW 1,170.00

09/01/2016 42558 CFC TITLE SERVICE INC‐ESCROW ACCT TAX OVERPAYMENT 58‐03‐531‐047 16.45

09/01/2016 42559 CONSTRUCTION FASTENERS INC WASP & HORNET SPRAY (7) 39.83

09/01/2016 42560 CRAIG L KEELOR PULLEY (3)/END CAPS (2)/PIN PULLLEY (2) 153.00

09/01/2016 42561 DEBORAH COMPTON UB REFUND FOR 9269 CEDAR CREEK 245.42

09/01/2016 42562 DIANE WENDT ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/21/16 #2 100.00

09/01/2016 42563 DONALD KORTH FIX WINDOWS ISSUE/CREATE DOMAIN ACCT 150.00

09/01/2016 42564 DONALD LAJINESS JR UB REFUND FOR 5428 MILLER 297.00

09/01/2016 42565 DOUGLAS GONYEA ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/20/16 #2 100.00

09/01/2016 42566 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC R900I METER 547.94

09/01/2016 42567 FRANCES WELCH ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/21/16 #1 100.00

09/01/2016 42568 GUNTHERS LOCKSMITH SERVICE SERVICE LOCK/6 KEYS 102.00

09/01/2016 42569 JANICE WILLIAMS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/21/16 #4 100.00

09/01/2016 42570 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 850.00

09/01/2016 42571 K O M UB REFUND FOR 3304 DYE RD 2.21

09/01/2016 42572 MARGARET SHELLEY WINSHALL PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/13/16 #2 100.00

09/01/2016 42573 MUZZALL GRAPHICS PAYROLL CHECKS (1000) 177.70

09/01/2016 42574 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC CONSULTNG SERVCS/YR END CLOSNG QUESTNS 620.00

09/01/2016 42575 RONALD L MCLEAN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/20/16 #1 100.00

09/01/2016 42576 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO DE ELMS PARK 7/17‐8/13/16 925.00

09/01/2016 42577 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN AUGUST 2016 FY17 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD  21,472.00

09/01/2016 42578 STATE OF MICHIGAN DEP OF STATE NOTARY J KEY 10.00

09/01/2016 42579 STATE OF MICHIGAN‐DEQ WTR APPLICATION FOR DISTRIBTN CERT/THIELL 70.00

09/01/2016 42580 STATE OF MICHIGAN‐DEQ WTR APPLICATION FOR DISTRIBTN CERT/SVRCEK 70.00

09/01/2016 42581 TIFFANY QUINN ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/20/16 #4 100.00

09/08/2016 42582 ACME BUILDING MATERIALS FASCIA (34)/NAILS 1 BOX 406.75

SOFFIT (10)/VINYL CHANNEL (9) 143.70

550.45

09/08/2016 42583 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.05

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 116.25

148.30

09/08/2016 42584 BROWNING POWER SYSTEMS LLC REPAIR GENERATOR 238.00

09/08/2016 42585 CHARLES H KNOX SR ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/28/16 #4 100.00

09/08/2016 42586 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1‐8/31/16 STREET LIGHTS 8,070.04

09/08/2016 42587 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1‐8/31/16 4524 MORRISH RD 33.78

09/08/2016 42588 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1‐8/31/16 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 382.45

09/08/2016 42589 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1‐8/31/16 SIRENS 18.18

09/08/2016 42590 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/1‐8/31/16 ELMS PARKING LOT 20.92

09/08/2016 42591 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/30/16 A 8011 MILLER RD 22.57

09/08/2016 42592 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 9099 MILLER RD 24.93

09/08/2016 42593 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 24.09

09/08/2016 42594 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 8301 CAPPY LN 192.04

09/08/2016 42595 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.57

09/08/2016 42596 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 8083 CIVIC DR 709.19

09/08/2016 42597 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 E 5121 MORRISH RD 608.43

09/08/2016 42598 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A WINSHALL RESTROOMS 31.72

09/08/2016 42599 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/2‐8/30/16 A 8499 MILLER RD 23.83

09/08/2016 42600 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 8059 FORTINO DR 22.57

09/08/2016 42601 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,149.83

City Council Packet 66 October 10, 2016



09/08/2016 42602 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 4510 MORRISH RD 31.67

09/08/2016 42603 COOKS DIESEL RV & TRUCK REPAIR REPLACED IGNITION SWITCH 170.00

09/08/2016 42604 DIXON ENGINEERING INC TECHNICAL SPECS/CONTRACT DOCS WTR TWR 3,000.00

09/08/2016 42605 DONALD KORTH TROUBLESHOOT VOICEMAIL ISSUE 150.00

09/08/2016 42606 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC TILT FAN 169.99

BRICKFACE STEPPING STONE 16" (6) 18.00

NUTS/BOLTS/WASHERS 1.2 LB 2.03

WASP & HORNET SPRAY 4.99

1 GAL WHITE PAINT 12.59

GLOVES (2) 27.98

TRIMMER LINE 8.99

10 LB GRASS SEED 16.99

RED SPRAY PAINT 4.69

RETURN 1 GAL WHITE PAINT (12.59)

253.66

09/08/2016 42607 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00

09/08/2016 42608 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER NPDES PHASE II IMPL FEES 7/1‐9/30/16 1,234.92

09/08/2016 42609 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER NPDES WORK PHASE II 7/1‐9/30/16 1,497.68

09/08/2016 42610 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WESTERN TRUNK BOND PAYMENT 10,396.70

09/08/2016 42611 GILL ROYS HARDWARE GALV NIPPLE/GALV COUPLING 12.78

ADJUSTABLE BALLCOCK 10.99

SINGLE CUT KEY 1.89

SINGLE CUT KEY (9) 17.01

TRASH CAN (2)/CLEANING SUPPLIES 69.89

TRASH BAGS/CLEANING SUPPLIES 77.13

SINGLE CUT KEY (4) 7.56

1" GALV TEE 5.59

WASP & HORNET KILLER 14.97

GALV PIPE/GALV COUPLING/CONCRETE MIX 54.10

SEALANT 9.99

BEE & YELLOW JACKET TRAPS & KILLER 26.57

WASP & HORNET KILLER (2) 11.98

1" BLACK TEE 4.99

TRASH BAGS (2) 35.98

SCOURING POWDER (2) 7.98

RED PAINT 25.99

COTTON DECK MOP 15.99

SINGLE CUT KEY (4) 7.56

1 GAL ORANGE PAINT/BRUSH SET 42.98

LOPPING SHEAR/PRUNER 49.98

BLACK NIPPLE/BLACK COUPLING 6.58

SCREWDRIVER (2) 11.78

CLEANING SUPPLIES FOR PARKS 14.12

GRAFFITI REMOVER 12.19

STAIN/STAINING SUPPLIES 72.14

SINGLE CUT KEY 1.89

UPS SHIPPING/80 PR EARPLUGS 29.00

FITTING W/PLUG/FLEXIBLE COUPLING 20.58

AUG 2016 DISCOUNT (67.15)

613.03

09/08/2016 42612 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS PAPER TOWELS (2) 73.98

09/08/2016 42613 JESSICA CONTRERAS UB REFUND FOR 9283 CEDAR CREEK 169.66

09/08/2016 42614 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 850.00

09/08/2016 42615 KENNEDY EXCAVATING INC CE WINSTON/FAIRCHILD WATERMAIN/RETAINAGE 75,511.02

CE WINSTON/FAIRCHILD INTERSECTIONS & RET 130,224.46

205,735.48

09/08/2016 42616 MATTHEW R WADDILL DUMP TRUCK TIRE REPAIR 10.00

09/08/2016 42617 OAK CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION CE ELMS 1,839.15 V

09/08/2016 42618 OHM ADVISORS MILLER‐MORRISH TO ELMS 268.11

09/08/2016 42619 OHM ADVISORS MILLER TALLMADGE TO DYE THRU 8/6/16 160.40

City Council Packet 67 October 10, 2016



09/08/2016 42620 RIVERDALE BAPTIST CHURCH ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 8/28/16 #2 100.00

09/08/2016 42621 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO CE WINSTON/FAIRCHILD WATERMIAN 7/17‐8/13 11,267.50

09/08/2016 42622 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 8/1‐8/31/16 FUEL USAGE ‐ DPW 891.75

09/08/2016 42623 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 8/1‐8/31/16 FUEL USAGE ‐ POLICE 1,254.41

09/08/2016 42624 VERIZON WIRELESS AUG 2016 MONTHLY INVOICE 393.31

09/09/2016 42625 OAK CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION CE ELMS PARK RESTROOM RENO 18,391.50

09/13/2016 42626 CONSUMERS ENERGY GAS CONN & SETUP/ELEC RELOCATE CAPPY LIF 4,749.07

09/13/2016 42627 STATE OF MICHIGAN ETRPT SCH AID MULTIPLE PARCELS 623.89

09/14/2016 42628 AMERICAN MESSAGING SEPT 2016 8108332563 8108331159 26.05

09/14/2016 42629 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.05

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 101.85

133.90

09/14/2016 42630 BIO‐SERV CORPORATION TREATED GROUND BEES 143.00

09/14/2016 42631 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY COST SHARING AGREEMENT/POLICE 2,465.62

09/14/2016 42632 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/4‐9/5/16 A 6425 MILLER PARK & RIDE 67.85

09/14/2016 42633 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/4‐9/5/16 A 4125 ELMS RD 75.26

09/14/2016 42634 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/5‐9/5/16 A 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 28.88

09/14/2016 42635 CONSUMERS ENERGY 8/3‐8/31/16 A 8095 CIVIC DR 1,142.86

09/14/2016 42636 DANIEL L RHANOR REPLACE BAD PLUG AND COVER/ELMS PARK 160.00

09/14/2016 42637 DAVID KRUEGER SMALL CITIES MTG 9/7/16 DINNER/MILEAGE 29.26

MILEAGE FIREMEN'S MEMORIAL 20.52

49.78

09/14/2016 42638 DENNIS TANNER ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/3/16 #1 100.00

09/14/2016 42639 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION AUG 2016 S‐MTCE & OPERATIONS 322.20

09/14/2016 42640 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION I‐69 WB RAMP@MORRISH 1.91

09/14/2016 42641 JAMES NOLEN ASPHALT PATCH 11,423.00

REPLACE 3600 SQ FT CONCRETE CITY GARAGE 19,400.00

30,823.00

09/14/2016 42642 JEROME LOWERY ELMS PARK DEPOSIT 9/3/16 #2 100.00

09/14/2016 42643 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 850.00

09/14/2016 42644 MATTHEW R WADDILL REPAIR CHIPPER TIRE 10.00

09/14/2016 42645 MLIVE MEDIA GROUP NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING/SPECIAL LAND US 320.74

09/14/2016 42646 MORE LIFE TABERNACLE ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/5/16 #2 100.00

09/14/2016 42647 MY‐CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL 8/16‐9/16/16 470.00

09/14/2016 42648 RICHARD ABRAMS SMALL CITIES MTG 9/7/16 MILEAGE/DINNER 30.28

09/14/2016 42649 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. AUGUST 2016 MONTHLY RUNS 2,017.87

09/14/2016 42650 TUCKER PLUMBING REPLACE WASTE ARM & TAIL PIECE SINK 100.00

09/14/2016 42651 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE OCT 2016 LIFE INS CLOLINGER/SHANNON 20.25

09/22/2016 42652 ADAM ZETTEL REIMB HERITAGE CONFERENCE/A ZETTEL 9/23/ 49.00

09/22/2016 42653 AGROSCAPING INC. REGAL PETTICOAT MAPLE TREES (2) 530.00

09/22/2016 42654 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.05

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 101.85

133.90

09/22/2016 42655 BARBARA BOXELL ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/11/16 #4 100.00

09/22/2016 42656 BIO‐SERV CORPORATION PEST CONTROL/PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 52.00

09/22/2016 42657 BLUE CARE NETWORK‐EAST MI OCT 2016 RETIREE MED INS KELLY 697.10

OCT 2016 RTIREE MED INS O'BRIEN 1,234.31

OCT 2016 RETIREE MED INS CLOLINGER 1,254.22

OCT 2016 COBRA MED INS BUECHE 534.90

3,720.53

09/22/2016 42658 BLUMERICH COMMUNICATIONS RADIO REPAIR 13‐384 91.86

REMOTE MIC FOR W/T 128.50

220.36

City Council Packet 68 October 10, 2016



09/22/2016 42659 BOOTS ABRAMS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/11/16 #2 100.00

09/22/2016 42660 CARRINGTON MORTGAGE SERVICES REFUND SU OVERPMT 58‐02‐503‐060 1,290.95

09/22/2016 42661 CATHIE SHERMAN ELMS PARK REFUND 9/11/16 #1 NO ELEC 170.00

09/22/2016 42662 CENTRAL LOAN ADMINISTRATION REFUND SU OVERPMT 58‐31‐501‐012 1,400.10

09/22/2016 42663 CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION (2) BATTERY STICKS 33.98

09/22/2016 42664 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMBURSE PETTY CASH 138.84

09/22/2016 42665 COOKS DIESEL RV & TRUCK REPAIR REPLACED THROTTLE PEDAL SENSORS 480.20

09/22/2016 42666 CREEK AUTO SERVICES LLC LOF MONTHLY MAINT 14‐514 35.95

REPLACE FRONT STRUTS 14‐514 468.20

REPLACE POWER OUTLET 14‐514 73.00

LOF MONTHLY MAINT 13‐384 35.95

LOF MONTHLY MAINT 12‐144 35.95

LOF MONTHLY MAINT 14‐514 35.95

685.00

09/22/2016 42667 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OCT 16 DENTAL‐RETIREES(5)/COBRA(1)/EST T 365.82

09/22/2016 42668 DELUX TROPHIES & AWARDS PLATE ENGRAVING CAMP 911 8.00

09/22/2016 42669 DONALD KORTH CORR EMAIL ISSUE 100.00

UPDATED WORKSTATIONS/SERVER/MAIL 300.00

400.00

09/22/2016 42670 ETNA SUPPLY COMPANY FAX/YELLOW CAUTION TAPE 11.99

09/22/2016 42671 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED SEPT 16 VISION‐RETIREES(5)/COBRA(1) 30.06

09/22/2016 42672 GAULT DAVISON PC AUG 2016 ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUE 337.50

09/22/2016 42673 GUNTHERS LOCKSMITH SERVICE REPAIR HANDICAP BUTTON AT LIBRARY 80.00

09/22/2016 42674 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS TONER, STAMP 230.95

TONER, PENS 163.21

56 GAL TRASH BAGS (2) 105.78

GARBAGE BAGS (2) 145.98

645.92

09/22/2016 42675 JERRY'S TIRE (2) LT215/85R16 TIRES 337.54

09/22/2016 42676 JOHNS TRUCK SERVICE REPAIR 2002 GMC TRUCK 969.24

REMOVE & REINSTALL HYDRAULIC TANK 433.20

1,402.44

09/22/2016 42677 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERETIES 850.00

09/22/2016 42678 LOANCARE LLC REFUND SU OVERPMT 58‐02‐526‐086 863.07

09/22/2016 42679 LYNNE CARROLL ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 9/10/16 #3 100.00

09/22/2016 42680 MICHIGAN LUMBER CO 2 X 10‐10' (6) LUMBER 81.00

09/22/2016 42681 MOE SALES & SERVICE INC FITTING FOR POWER WASHER 26.00

REPAIR POWER WASHER 383.71

409.71

09/22/2016 42682 MRWA WTR CRT/RVW S1 S2/THIELL 10/19‐10/20/16 330.00

09/22/2016 42683 MRWA BSC MATH WTR PRSNL SVRCEK/THIELL 11/1/16 400.00

09/22/2016 42684 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN RED FLAGS/20" MONITOR (2) 244.07

10 FT DVI CABLE 9.99

254.06

09/22/2016 42685 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC FY16 AUDIT BILL #1 15,000.00

09/22/2016 42686 PRINTING SYSTEMS AV BLT ENV IN&OUT(500 EA)/AV APPS(250) 169.23

09/22/2016 42687 ROYALTY SERVICES INC TOPSOIL (20)/LIMESTONE 23 TONS/DELIVERY 965.00

09/22/2016 42688 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC AUG 2016 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 2,824.50

09/22/2016 42689 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY SPARK PLUG 2.99

09/22/2016 42690 SWARTZ CREEK SCHOOLS 10 CASES OF COPY PAPER 231.20

09/22/2016 42691 TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE TRANSUNION INVESTIGATIVE 8/1‐8/31/16 25.00

09/22/2016 42692 VILLAGE CLEANERS AUG 2016 UNIFORM CLEANING 60.25

City Council Packet 69 October 10, 2016



09/29/2016 42693 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.05

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 101.85

133.90

09/29/2016 42694 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS COPY MACH MAINT. AGREEMENT 1,214.76

09/29/2016 42695 COMCAST BUSINESS 9/26‐10/25/16 CITY HALL 329.60

09/29/2016 42696 COMCAST BUSINESS 10/1‐10/31/16 PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 149.80

09/29/2016 42697 ERSON INC HYDRO TANK 450.00

09/29/2016 42698 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER AGENT FEES WESTERN TRUNK 9/1/16‐8/31/17 162.39

09/29/2016 42699 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WATER 7/27‐8/31/16 3,300,010 CF 188,428.56

09/29/2016 42700 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 850.00

09/29/2016 42701 MICHIGAN ASSOC OF PLANNING CONF REGISTRATION J FARMER 10/27/16 235.00

09/29/2016 42702 MICHIGAN ASSOC OF PLANNING CONF REGISTRATION A. ZETTEL 387.00

09/29/2016 42703 MRWA MEMB DUES MRWA 10/1/16‐6/30/17 555.00

09/29/2016 42704 PURCHASE POWER SEPT 2016 POSTAGE/TRANS FEE 2,020.99

09/29/2016 42705 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO STREET PROJECTS 2017‐2018 14,979.75

09/29/2016 42706 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN SEPT 2016 FY17 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD WA 21,472.00

09/29/2016 42707 SPORTS CREEK ACQ INC SU TAX OVERPMT REFUND 58‐35‐400‐001 6,344.60

09/29/2016 42708 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY PEAK 50/50 EXTN/BRAKE CLEAN 15.48

09/29/2016 42709 THE OETZEL‐HARTMAN GROUP APPRAISAL REPORT 5499 MILLER RD 7,500.00

09/29/2016 42710 U. S. POST OFFICE POSTAGE FOR OCT 2016 WATER/SEWER BILLS 672.69

GEN TOTALS:

Total of 157 Checks: 625,135.05

Less 1 Void Checks: 1,839.15

Total of 156 Disbursements: 623,295.90

City Council Packet 70 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 71 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 72 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 73 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 74 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 75 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 76 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 77 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 78 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 79 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 80 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 81 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 82 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 83 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 84 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 85 October 10, 2016



City of Swartz Creek10/03/16

Building Permit List
2016

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Building

PB1600049 09/08/16 (810) 235 9866 58-02-529-012 $7,182 $135.00 5058 MORRISH RD 48473-1300Siding 0Lockhart Roofing Co.

PB1600050 09/13/16 (810) 235 9866 58-03-531-121 $8,225 $140.00 5176 BIRCHCREST DR 48473-1002Roofing 0Lockhart Roofing Co.

PB1600051 09/15/16 58-35-776-056 $1,680 $155.00 56 KINGSLEY 48473-1181Res Deck 0BROTEMARKLE, RICHARD OR CURRENT RES

PB1600052 09/28/16 (810) 235 9866 58-02-503-081 $7,515 $135.00 5140 WINSHALL DR 48473-1223Roofing 0Lockhart Roofing Co.

PB1600053 09/28/16 (734) 246 3955 58-36-651-143 $1,340 $105.00 4282 CHAPEL LN 48473 Window Replacement 0THD At-Home Services, Inc.

Total: 5 Permits Value: $25,942 Fee Total: $670.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Electrical

PE1600042 09/07/16 (989) 288 4906 58-03-530-001 $0 $220.00 9041 MILLER RD 48473-1111Electrical 0Culp Electric Inc

PE1600043 09/15/16 (810) 577 1044 58-36-651-246 $0 $116.00 4272 LATIFEE CT 48473-1710Electrical 0Jozsa Electric Inc

PE1600044 09/29/16 (248) 706 2700 58-30-651-071 $0 $106.00 6333 ST CHARLES PASS48473-7953Electrical 0AE Electrical Solutions

Total: 3 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $442.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Mechanical

PM160041 09/02/16 (810) 579 4790 58-36-526-029 $0 $130.00 4107 JENNIE LN 48473-1549Mechanical 0Dee Cramer Inc

PM160042 09/07/16 (810) 232 8270 58-35-776-089 $0 $130.00 89 HAMILTON ST 48473-1177Mechanical 0Terry Allen Plbg & Htg Co

PM160043 09/08/16 (810) 691 5815 58-02-100-008 $0 $185.00 8339 CAPPY LN 48473 Mechanical 0Ferrigan Heating and Cooling

PM160044 09/12/16 (616) 785 5000 58-36-400-010 $0 $970.00 4276 KROGER DR 48473 Mechanical 0Van Wall Fire Protection Inc.

PM160045 09/12/16 (810) 653 0299 58-30-651-071 $0 $130.00 6333 ST CHARLES PASS48473-7953Mechanical 0Konieczka Heating & Cooling, Inc.

PM160046 09/13/16 (630) 893 8511 58-36-576-012 $0 $220.00 7084 MILLER RD 48473-1534Mechanical 0Climate Pros Inc.

PM160047 09/14/16 (810) 845 6241 58-03-531-069 $0 $130.00 5226 SEYMOUR RD 48473-1030Mechanical 0JCK Plumbing Heating ACCity Council Packet 86 October 10, 2016



City of Swartz Creek10/03/16

Building Permit List
2016

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

PM160048 09/15/16 (810) 625 2486 58-36-651-246 $0 $105.00 4272 LATIFEE CT 48473-1710Mechanical 0Matthew Bigler

PM160049 09/26/16 (810) 659 5572 58-36-676-065 $0 $225.00 4292 LINDSEY DR 48473 Mechanical 0Staley's Plbg & Htg, Inc.

PM160050 09/26/16 (810) 579 4790 58-35-551-002 $0 $170.00 8406 MILLER RD 48473-1248Mechanical 0Dee Cramer Inc

Total: 10 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $2,395.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Zoning

PZ16-0018 09/08/16 58-03-533-056 $1,940 $25.00 5290 GREENLEAF DR 48473-1165Shed 0BRAUN, PAUL & JUDY

PZ16-0019 09/16/16 58-02-501-111 $485 $25.00 5239 OAKVIEW DR 48473-1168Shed 0BARRY, OSCAR & JULIE

Total: 2 Permits Value: $2,425 Fee Total: $50.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Fee Total:Permit Total: 20 Value: $3,557.00$28,367

Permit.DateIssued  Between  9/1/2016 12:00:00
AM AND 9/30/2016 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 87 October 10, 2016



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 10/03/16

InspectorCompleted Result

Jeremy Pizzala09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Partially Complied8093 MILLER RD Status58-02-528-001

Matt Hart09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Rough58-36-676-064

Matt Hart09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved7084 MILLER RD Footing58-36-576-012

Bob Davis09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved8197 MILLER RD Final58-02-526-027

Matt Hart09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved7219 LINDSEY DR Rough58-36-676-044

Bob Davis09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved8197 MILLER RD Final58-02-526-027

Bob Davis09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved6337 BRISTOL RD Final58-31-100-038

Leon Buning09/01/2016 09/01/2016 Approved8339 CAPPY LN Underground58-02-100-008

Amy Nichols09/02/20168211 INGALLS ST Ordinance58-02-526-025

Amy Nichols09/02/20168353 MILLER RD Ordinance58-02-504-006

Matt Hart09/06/2016 09/06/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Flashing58-36-400-010

Matt Hart09/06/2016 09/06/2016 Approved4336 MORRISH RD Final58-35-576-014

Jeremy Pizzala09/07/2016 09/07/2016 No Change5388 DURWOOD DR Status58-03-533-114

Jeremy Pizzala09/07/2016 09/07/2016 Violation(s)5346 DURWOOD DR Ordinance58-03-533-120

Leon Buning09/07/2016 09/07/2016 Approved5226 SEYMOUR RD Final58-03-531-069

Matt Hart09/07/2016 09/07/2016 Approved7084 MILLER RD Framing58-36-576-012

Bob Davis09/08/2016 09/13/2016 Approved4107 JENNIE LN Final58-36-526-029

Bob Davis09/08/2016 09/08/2016 Approved8339 CAPPY LN Underground58-02-100-008

Tom Svrcek09/12/20168083 CIVIC DR Ordinance58-35-576-059

Tom Svrcek09/12/20165365 WORCHESTER DR Site Inspection58-03-578-015

Jeremy Pizzala09/12/2016 09/12/2016 Violation(s)8024 MILLER RD Ordinance58-35-576-043

Jeremy Pizzala09/13/2016 09/13/2016 Complied5239 OAKVIEW DR Status58-02-501-111

Matt Hart09/13/2016 09/13/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Insulation58-36-676-064

Matt Hart09/13/2016 09/13/2016 Approved7219 LINDSEY DR Insulation58-36-676-044

Leon Buning09/13/2016 09/13/2016 Approved9041 MILLER RD Rough58-03-530-001

Amy Nichols09/13/20165359 MILLER RD Ordinance58-32-100-008

Amy Nichols09/13/20166025 MILLER RD Ordinance58-31-200-015City Council Packet 88 October 10, 2016



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 10/03/16

InspectorCompleted Result

Matt Hart09/13/2016 09/13/2016 Partially Complied5354 MILLER RD Follow Up58-29-551-014

Matt Hart09/13/2016 09/19/2016 Not Complied4126 ELMS RD Follow Up58-36-526-020

Matt Hart09/14/2016 09/16/2016 Partially Complied8390 MILLER RD Follow Up58-35-300-008

Matt Hart09/14/2016 09/16/2016 Complied9267 CEDAR CREEK CT Follow Up58-03-627-003

Bob Davis09/15/2016 09/15/2016 Approved5226 SEYMOUR RD Final58-03-531-069

Matt Hart09/15/2016 09/15/2016 Approved56 KINGSLEY Post Hole58-35-776-056

Adam Zettel09/19/2016 09/20/2016 Complied4141 MORRISH RD Status58-36-100-001

Adam Zettel09/19/2016 09/20/2016 Not Complied4301 ELMS RD Status58-31-551-006

Jeremy Pizzala09/19/2016 09/21/2016 No Change5256 DON SHENK DR Status58-02-503-004

Jeremy Pizzala09/19/2016 09/21/2016 Partially Complied9189 OAKVIEW DR Status58-03-531-096

Jeremy Pizzala09/19/2016 09/21/2016 Complied8093 MILLER RD Status58-02-528-001

Matt Hart09/19/2016 09/19/2016 Partially Complied8403 MILLER RD Status58-02-504-013

Jeremy Pizzala09/19/2016 09/21/2016 Partially Complied8024 MILLER RD Status58-35-576-043

Bob Davis09/20/2016 09/20/2016 Approved4292 LINDSEY DR Rough58-36-676-065

Jeremy Pizzala09/21/2016 09/21/2016 No Change5014 FORD ST Status58-02-528-012

Jeremy Pizzala09/21/2016 09/21/2016 Complied5346 DURWOOD DR Status58-03-533-120

Matt Hart09/21/2016 09/21/2016 Approved56 KINGSLEY Final58-35-776-056

Matt Hart09/22/2016 09/26/2016 Complied8403 MILLER RD Status58-02-504-013

Bob Davis09/22/2016 09/22/2016 Approved4272 LATIFEE CT Final58-36-651-246

Matt Hart09/27/2016 09/27/2016 Approved5239 OAKVIEW DR Final Zoning58-02-501-111

Matt Hart09/28/2016 09/28/2016 Violation(s)7556 MILLER RD Ordinance58-36-552-009

Matt Hart09/28/2016 09/28/2016 Complied5273 GREENLEAF DR Follow Up58-03-533-090

Matt Hart09/28/2016 09/29/2016 Complied5213 DURWOOD DR Follow Up58-03-533-165

Matt Hart09/28/2016 09/28/2016 Complied5259 DON SHENK DR Follow Up58-02-503-072

Matt Hart09/28/2016 09/28/2016 Complied5197 DAVAL DR Follow Up58-02-501-014

Tara Ford09/29/2016 09/29/2016 Violation(s)7556 MILLER RD Letter58-36-552-009

City Council Packet 89 October 10, 2016



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 10/03/16

InspectorCompleted Result

All RecordsPopulation:Inspections: 53

Inspection.DateTimeScheduled  Between  9/1/2016 12:00:00 AM AND 9/30/2016 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 90 October 10, 2016



Certificates With Inspections

StatusExpiresLast InspectionIssuedSinceDate AppliedAddressCertificate Number

10/03/2016

Certified09/16/201909/16/201609/16/201611/30/201511/30/20159267 CEDAR CREEK CTCR150056

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsInitial

Certified09/28/201809/28/201609/28/201612/08/201512/08/20155259 DON SHENK DRCR150082

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsInitial

Certified09/29/201809/29/201609/29/201612/30/201512/30/20155213 DURWOOD DRCR150105

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsInitial

Certified09/28/201809/28/201609/28/201612/30/201512/30/20155273 GREENLEAF DRCR150106

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsInitial

Certified09/28/201809/28/201609/28/201612/30/201512/30/20155197 DAVAL DRCR150107

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsFollow Up

Violation(s)CompletedMarty JohnsonANicholsInitial

Population: Record Count: 5 

Certificate.DateIssued  Between  9/1/2016 12:00:00 AM
AND 9/30/2016 11:59:59 PM

All Records

City Council Packet 91 October 10, 2016



Enforcements By Category 10/03/16

BLIGHT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E16-346 Violation 09/12/168024 MILLER RD

E16-349 Violation 09/27/167556 MILLER RD

Total  Entries: 2

SIGNS

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E16-343 Complete 09/08/16 09/12/168083 CIVIC DR

Total  Entries: 1

WEED COMPLAINT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E16-341 Inspection Pending 09/02/168211 INGALLS ST

E16-342 Inspection Pending 09/02/168353 MILLER RD

E16-345 09/12/165365 WORCHESTER DR

E16-347 Inspection Pending 09/13/165359 MILLER RD

E16-348 Inspection Pending 09/13/166025 MILLER RD

Total  Entries: 5

All RecordsPopulation:Total Records: 8
Enforcement.DateFiled  Between  9/1/2016 12:00:00 AM AND 9/30/2016 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 92 October 10, 2016



FANG REPORT 
September 2016 

On 9-1-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-1-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of cocaine from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-2-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspect in the city of 
Burton.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-6-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  FANG officers then obtained a search warrant for location services from the suspect’s 
phone.  Officers had information the suspect was travelling to Detroit to purchase heroin to sell in the 
Flint area.  On 9-12-16, GPS phone information showed the suspect was travelling south on I-75.  FANG 
officers set up the freeway observing the suspect travelling back north on I-75 as he entered Genesee 
County.  After observing traffic violations a traffic stop was conducted by a MSP K-9 Trooper.  The 
suspect was found to be in possession of 22 grams of heroin.  Forfeiture proceedings were initiated on a 
2008 Dodge Charger.  The suspect was lodged in the Flint City Jail.    

On 9-8-16, FANG officers observed a subject known by officers to be a mid- level heroin dealer walking 
from a hotel in Flint Twp.  It was also known the subject had an active warrant for his arrest.  FANG 
officers made contact with the subject arresting him without incident.  The subject was found to have 
approximately 10 grams of heroin on his person (a part of this heroin was already packaged in 43 
individual bindles).  The subject was lodged in the Flint City Jail. 

After several controlled purchases of cocaine in the Fenton area FANG officers obtained and executed a 
search warrant in the city of Fenton on 9-8-16.  Officers seized 4.5 grams of cocaine, a small amount of 
marijuana wax and initiated forfeiture proceedings on $1489.00.  The suspect was lodged in the 
Genesee County Jail.    

On 9-9-16, FANG officers executed two search warrants at two different locations in the city of 
Flint.  Officers seized 47 bindles of heroin, 2 semi-auto hand guns and initiated forfeiture proceedings on 
$164.00.  Three subjects were lodged in the Flint City Jail. 

On 9-9-16, FANG officers observed s suspected hand to hand drug transaction near a motel in the city of 
Burton.  With the assistance of Burton P.D. officers made contact with one of the suspects.  The suspect 
was found to be in possession of cocaine.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-12-16 and 9-19-16 FANG officers conducted undercover officer purchases of heroin from a suspect 
at a residence in the city of Flint.  Offices obtained and executed a search warrant at the residence on 9-
19-16.  Officers seized 3 bindles of heroin, a small amount of crack cocaine, vicodin pills, a semi auto rifle 
and a pump shotgun.  A review of the suspects phone has revealed text messages from a subject that 

City Council Packet 93 October 10, 2016



had just dropped the guns off to the suspect (a convicted felon) trading them for drugs.  Forfeiture 
proceedings were initiated on $420.00 and 3 flat screen televisions, 2 of which were still in the 
boxes.  The suspect was lodged in the Flint City Jail. 

On 9-12-16, acting on information from MSP aviation, FANG officers responded to a residence in 
Genesee Twp. reference marijuana plants growing in an open area behind a residence.  Officers located 
and seized 71 marijuana plants.  A warrant request will be submitted to the Genesee County 
Prosecutors Office.   

On 9-12-16, acting on information from MSP aviation, FANG officers responded to a cornfield in Clayton 
Twp.  Officers located and seized 20 marijuana plants.  There are no suspects.  

On 9-14-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-14-16, FANG officers conducted an undercover officer buy/bust in the parking lot of a business in 
the city of Flint.  After a brief struggle the suspect was taken into custody.  The suspect was found to be 
in possession of 10 grams of heroin, and 5 grams of crack.  Forfeiture proceedings were initiated on 
$1544.00.  The suspect was lodged in the Flint City Jail. 

On 9-14-16, FANG officers conducted a knock and talk at a residence in Mundy Twp. reference 
marijuana plants growing unsecured behind the residence.  Officers located and seized 22 large 
marijuana plants.  A report will be forwarded to the Genesee County Prosecutors Office for review.  

On 9-16-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of heroin from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  The investigation is on-going. 

On 9-20-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of cocaine from a suspect in the city of 
Flint.  The investigation is on-going.  

On 9-21-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of cocaine with the assistance of a 
Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI was kept under surveillance to a house in Grand Blanc 
Township.  The known drug dealer exited the house and approached the CI in the driveway of the 
home.  The purchase of cocaine was made and the CI was surveilled away from the house.  Information 
was gathered on the suspect and the investigation is still ongoing. 

On 9-21-16, FANG officers conducted surveillance on a house in the City of Burton looking for a Fugitive 
with several Felony Warrants.  The subject was observed leaving the home in a vehicle driven by a 
female.  Surveillance was continued on the vehicle until a marked patrol unit was able to make a traffic 
stop.  The male was arrested and lodged in the Genesee County Jail. 

On 9-21-16, FANG officers conducted a knock and talk of a residence after receiving a tip of a possible 
Marijuana grow operation.  An illegal grow was discovered and (9) marijuana plants were seized.  The 
male homeowner was arrested and released pending further investigation. 

City Council Packet 94 October 10, 2016



On 9-22-16, FANG officers conducted operation HEMP in Mt. Morris Township with assistance from MSP 
aviation.  Officers seized (151) marijuana plants from 3 illegal grow operations.  The investigation is still 
on going. 

On 9-24-16, FANG officers responded to a grassy area near I-69 in Lapeer County to assist Lapeer Post 
Troopers with the above mentioned methamphetamine lab dumpsite.   FANG officers assisted Troopers 
with the investigation then searched, seized, packaged and transported the methamphetamine 
hazardous materials to the MSP methamphetamine hazardous materials storage container in 
Bridgeport. 

On 9-26-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of cocaine with the assistance of a 
Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI was kept under surveillance to a house in the City of Flint.  The CI 
entered the home.  The purchase of cocaine was made and the CI was surveilled away from the 
house.  Information was gathered on the suspect and the investigation is still ongoing. 

On 9-26-16, FANG officers conducted a knock and talks at a residence in Gaines Township after receiving 
a tip of Marijuana grow operation from MSP aviation.  Officers seized (25) marijuana plants from an 
unsecure outdoor area.  The investigation is still on going. 

On 9-27-16, FANG officers were conducting surveillance on a Flint Township motel.  Officers made 
contact with a male suspected a drug trafficking.  The male was arrested and officers seized 
approximately 3.5 grams of Crack and 2.5 grams of Heroin.  Forfeiture was initiated on $305 in US 
currency.  Officers also arrested another male on outstanding warrants.  Both males were lodged in the 
Flint City lockup.   

On 9-27-16, FANG officers conducted a knock and talk at a house in the City of Flint after receiving a tip 
of a Marijuana grow operation from MSP aviation.  Officers seized (81) marijuana plants from an 
unsecure outdoor area.  The investigation is still on going. 

On 9-28-16, FANG officers responded to a corn field in Genesee Township after receiving a tip of 
Marijuana grow operation from MSP aviation.  Officers seized (15) marijuana plants from an unsecure 
outdoor area.  The investigation is still on going. 

On 9-28-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase buy/bust with the assistance of a 
Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI contacted a known drug dealer and planned to meet at a parking lot 
in Downtown City of Flint.  The drug dealer arrived and officers moved in arresting all parties.  Officers 
seized approximately 4.1 grams of crack cocaine and forfeiture was initiated on $939 in US 
currency.  Two male subjects were lodged in the Flint City lockup. 

On 9-28-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of crack cocaine with the assistance of a 
Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI was kept under surveillance to a house in the City of Flint.  The CI 
entered the home.  The purchase of crack cocaine was made and the CI was surveilled away from the 
house.  Information was gathered on the suspect and the investigation is still ongoing. 

City Council Packet 95 October 10, 2016



On 9-28-16, FANG officers conducted a second controlled purchase of crack cocaine with the assistance 
of a Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI was kept under surveillance to a house in the City of Flint.  The CI 
entered the home.  The purchase of crack cocaine was made and the CI was surveilled away from the 
house.  Information was gathered on the suspect and the investigation is still ongoing. 

On 9-28-16, FANG officers were called to assist Flint Township Police at a house in Mt. Morris 
Township.  The Flint Township Police executed a search warrant in reference to some Home Invasions 
and discovered an illegal Marijuana grow operation.  Officers seized (7) Marijuana plants from inside the 
home.  The investigation is still on going. 

On 9-29-16, FANG officers were called to assist at a house in Flint Township.  The Flint Township Police 
were called to the scene of a shooting and discovered an illegal Marijuana grow operation in the 
backyard of the residence.  Officers seized (7) marijuana plants from outside and approximately 45 
grams of processed marijuana from inside the home. 

On 9-29-16, FANG officers conducted a controlled purchase of marijuana with the assistance of a 
Confidential Informant (CI).  The CI was kept under surveillance to a house in Genesee Township.  The 
known drug dealer exited the house and approached the CI in the driveway of the home.  The purchase 
of marijuana was made and the CI was surveilled away from the house.  Information was gathered on 
the suspect and the investigation is still ongoing. 

Thanks to all for the continued support for the FANG.   

Pat 

D/F/Lt. Patrick Richard 
Section Commander-Flint Area Narcotics Group 
Third District Headquarters                                
Michigan State Police 
Mailing Address: 
F.A.N.G.                             
PO Box 614 
Grand Blanc, Mi 48480                          
Office:  810-233-3689 
Cell:  616-260-8583 
FAX:  810-233-7119  
richardp@michigan.gov                             
  
“A PROUD tradition of SERVICE through EXCELLENCE, INTEGRITY, and COURTESY 
 

City Council Packet 96 October 10, 2016

mailto:richardp@michigan.gov


Cell Site No.: MI4029 
Cell Site Name: DESIGN-4029 
Fixed Asset No.: 10076378 
Market: MI / IN 
Address: 4355 South Elms Road 
 

1 
Category 3, 4, & 5  Amendment Form 

 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY  

COLLOCATION AND LANDLORD/AWS AGREEMENT 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY 
COLLOCATION AND LANDLORD/AWS AGREEMENT (“First Amendment”), dated as of 
the latter of the signature dates below (the “Effective Date”), is by and between the City of Swartz 
Creek, a Michigan municipal corporation, having a mailing address of 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz 
Creek, MI 48473-1498 (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, successor by merger to AT&T Wireless PCS, LLC, having 
a mailing address of 575 Morosgo Drive, Atlanta, GA 30324 (hereinafter “AWS” shall be referred 
to as “Tenant”).  
 
 WHEREAS, City and Tenant (or its respective predecessor-in-interest) entered into a 
Telecommunications Facility Collocation and Landlord/AWS Agreement dated March 27, 2000 
(hereinafter, the "Agreement"), whereby City consented to AT&T subleasing certain premises 
("Premises"), therein described, that are a portion of the property ("Property") located at 4355 
South Elms Road, Swartz Creek, MI; and  
 

WHEREAS, City and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to adjust the Rent (as defined 
below) to rectify an overpay in Rent in the amount of $15,840.93; and 

 
WHEREAS, City and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to modify the notice section 

thereof; and 
 

 WHEREAS, City and Tenant, in their mutual interest, wish to amend the Agreement as 
set forth below accordingly. 
  
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, City and Tenant 
agree that the recitals set forth above are incorporated herein as if set forth in their entirety and 
further agree as follows: 
 

1. Rent.  For the period of December 1, 2016 until December 31, 2017, Tenant’s payments 
for the sublease pursuant to Paragraph 2 of the Agreement shall abate in their entirety.  To balance 
that abatement, Tenant agrees to pay City the sum of Eight Hundred Five and 47/100 Dollars 
($805.47) as a one-time payment, payable within ninety (90) days after the full execution of this 
Second Amendment.  Commencing on January 1, 2018, the rent payable under the Agreement 
shall be One Thousand Two Hundred Twenty-Four and No/100 Dollars ($1,224.00) per month 
(the "Rent"), and shall continue, subject to adjustment as provided herein.  Paragraph 2 of the 
Agreement shall be amended to provide that Rent shall be adjusted as follows: commencing on 
December 1, 2021, and each five (5) years thereafter, the monthly Rent will increase by fifteen 
percent (15%) over the Rent paid for the immediately preceding month. 

 

City Council Packet 97 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 98 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 99 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 100 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 101 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 102 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 103 October 10, 2016



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

PARK AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

October 5, 2016 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:01 p.m. by Rae Lynn Hicks at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building. 
 
Members Present: Ryan Bueche, Larry Cummings, Rick Henry (6:02), Rae Lynn Hicks, Joe Perreault, 
Dennis Reno, Sharon Shumaker, & Pat Williams 
 
Members Absent: James Florence 
 
Staff Present: Adam Zettel  
 
Others Present: Lania Rocha, Jim Barclay, Steve Shumaker, & Dave Thomas 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Dennis Reno to approve the agenda as amended to include Park 

Repair under new business, supported by Ms. Shumaker. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion by Williams, to approve minutes of September 7, 2016, supported by 

Shumaker. Motion carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: Steve Shumaker noted that it appeared the DDA is planning the future 

of 5012 Holland Drive. He recommended that the park board be involved. 
 Mr. Henry spoke on behalf of an absent resident and inquired about hosting a small 

wedding at the Veterans’ Memorial. There was no objection. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD: 

A. September 7, 2016 Minutes 
B. Staff Letter 
C. Disc Golf Map and Information 

REPORTS: 
A. DPW REPORT: Nothing to report. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Elms Park Improvements: Adam reported phase I bathrooms are done. Phase II 
improvements will be bid in the winter and completed in the spring.  

B. Fundraising: Adam indicated that the pumpkin sale raised $608 dollars. Mr. Johns 
will be working on business letter follow up and holiday giving. Mrs. Hicks will be 
working on Thank You letters, and Mr. Reno had ideas to improve next year’s sale, 
including a MSU-UM giving challenge. Mrs. Hicks was also going to approach the 
High School band director about attending the parade in Lennon in the summer of 
2017. 

NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A. Winshall Improvements: A nine hole disc golf course was mapped out and 
presented by Mr. David Thomas. He indicated that a complete set of baskets could 

City Council Packet 104 October 10, 2016



be purchased for under $2,500, with future costs for pads and other equipment in 
the future. The course was well received. Funding, either by the city or businesses, 
was discussed. There was a 7-1 hand vote to endorse the course to the city council, 
subject to funding.  

B. Exercise Trail: There was no recommendation to remove, replace, or upgrade the 
course. Mr. Zettel indicated that unsafe equipment would be removed. Everything 
else would stay.  

C. Maintenance: The benches, some tables, the flag pole, the sign, and the pavilion 
floor in Winshall are finished or under work. More work is expected. 

D. Two Day Art Show:  It was noted that the community groups that put on the August 
Art in the Park event at Elms Park are requesting a two day show for 2017 instead of 
a one day show. The park board supported this concept. 

Motion by Williams, to approve endorse a two day Art in the Park event in Elms 
Park for 2017, supported by Shumaker. Motion carried by voice vote. 

E. Park Repair: No further discussion ensued. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: Jim Barclay noted that he is hold a neighborhood watch meeting at 
Winshall Park on October 12 in the evening. He also informed the group about the existence of various 
FaceBook pages for the community. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Joe noted that the Elms Park sign should be redone next year.  Rick Henry 
said that a Veteran Memorial ceremony would be held at the memorial at 11:00 a.m. on November 11th. 
Dennis Reno comment positively on the community entry sign on the city’s west end. Sharon said that 
the scare crows are going up downtown. She also spoke in favor of a winter fest at Elms Park.  

Members spoke briefly about the holiday decorating contest. Mr. Cummings and Mr. Perreault will be 
juding the west end. Mr. Reno and Mr. Henry will be judging the east end.  

It was said that the bench by city hall is very rotted. Winter maintenance was recommended for the 
sings and lady bug at Winshall Park.  

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: November 2, 2016, 6:00 p.m. at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building. 

  

_____________________________________ 
James Florence, Secretary 

 

City Council Packet 105 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

1 
 

MINUTES 
 

POLICE AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
8-24-16 

Location: Charter Township of Mundy 
 
Meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. 
 
Curt Porath asked that everyone stand and led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Mr. Porath acknowledged that the full board was present with no absentees (Curt 
Porath, Kay Doerr, David Krueger, Tonya Ketzler, Vane King, Dennis Pinkston, and Joe 
Oskey).  Curt Porath asked for someone to accept the minutes from the last meeting.  
Tonya Ketzler moved for acceptance and Joe Oskey supported.  Kay Doerr noted that 
Tonya was spelled incorrectly in one place.  MOTION CARRIED, unanimously.   
 
Mr. Porath asked if Chief Dan Atkinson if there were any additions or corrections to the 
Agenda.  Chief Atkinson noted that he had given out some additional handouts that were 
not in the original packet, being the summary of the wages and the purchasing policy 
which Mr. Zettel was going to discuss.  Mr. Krueger moved to accept the Agenda 
presented and Joe Oskey supported.  MOTION CARRIED unanimously. 
 
1. CONSOLIDATION 
 
Curt Porath asked Chief Atkinson to start off with the Agenda and the relatively good 
news.  Chief Atkinson acknowledged that the contract slowed things down, but the 
consolidation itself and the officers working together and joint scheduling and whole 
concept is working very well.  Officers are covering for each other and it’s almost like 
we have officially merged and that’s a good sign.  Everything we wanted to see 
happening as far as the consolidation and activity is working well.  In regards to the 
contract negotiations started in February and it’s been difficult and working with union 
representatives.  They came up with tentative agreement this past week and the union 
voted and passed.  Ray has put final agreement together for review which they got 
yesterday.  Chief Atkinson acknowledged that they did have to go to mediation and the 
mediator indicated that it was a very good contract.  Chief Atkinson provided a 
summary page that breaks it down.  There is a 3 year duration with a 3% increase in 
2016 and 2.5% in both 2017 and 2018.  The shift premium is what we currently have in 
effect.  Longevity is eliminated.  Changes in fringe benefits increases holidays by 1 day 
for Mundy Township employees and reduces it by 1 for the Swartz Creek.  Personal 
days stay the same and vacation days were added after 25 years of service.  On the 
insurance plan there will be some savings to the Authority or the Municipalities from 
the insurance plans they are going with.  The retirement plan – the employee 
contribution is currently 7% for Mundy and 2% for Swartz Creek.  This was kind of 
compromise and will go 4%, 5% and 6% over the next 3 years.  All future full-time 

City Council Packet 106 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

2 
 

employees hired will go to the hybrid type plan.  Overall they believe they have a good 
contract and are putting the numbers together to make sure it’s going to work.   
 
Mr Krueger asked what management rights mean under #5.  Chief Atkinson responded 
that every contract has a certain amount of management rights that has to do with being 
able to manage the department as far as scheduling, job assignments, and scope of 
work.  Dep Chief Clolinger further explained that management rights was a separate 
section and deals with promotions, demotions, work schedule, work force. It allows 
management to make those decisions and it’s not part of the contract that can be driven 
by the contract.  Joe Oskey asked about the defined benefit and hybrid plan.  Chief 
Atkinson related it was a 1.5% multiplier for all the members and there would be a 
certain amount of contribution that would be made by members into another account 
like a 457.  It was clarified by Chief Atkinson and Dep Chief Clolinger that all new 
employees would be on the new plan, but all existing employees would still continue 
with the defined benefit plan.  Dep Chief Clolinger said that basically the 1.5% is under 
defined benefit their contribution goes in and allows the employees when they reach 
retirement age that the section they’ve contributed to on the 401 and 457 they have 
access to those funds and the other defined benefit is a 1.5 multiplier.  It’s a plan a lot of 
agencies are going to and why they struggled with it because it was new and having 
something tiered with new employees but it helps and it’s a good program, but doesn’t 
believe the membership really understood it, but it doesn’t apply to any of the current 
employees.   
Chief Atkinson reiterated that it was a 1.5 multiplier, FAC 55/25 and the Authority will 
contribute a maximum of 10% of employer earnings to the defined benefit.   Vane King 
asked if part-time was excluded from this contract or if there was something.  Chief 
Atkinson said they are part of the union and it just pertains to their wages and they will 
have a starting wage and a wage after one year that will stay the same.  Curt Porath 
asked if that was common and Chief Atkinson said that part time stuff is all over the 
place.   
 
Chief Atkinson related that they are currently hiring another officer from the City of 
Flint, who is a three-year veteran with the City of Flint and is a K9 officer and wants to 
become a full-time officer.  Mr Krueger asked if the K9 would come with him.  Dep 
Chief Clolinger related that we would have to have some agreement with the City of 
Flint and transportation is an issue.   
 
Mr. Krueger asked if the Contract was something that the Board has to accept.  Chief 
Atkinson said the budget has to be put together first.  
 
2. BUDGET/PAYROLL SERVICES 
 
Chief Atkinson related that they started on the budget right away.  Shawna has done 
some work and Dave Moore came in to help us and Adam has gotten information to 

City Council Packet 107 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

3 
 

Juanita and hopes to be able to put together the budget quickly.  They’ve also looked at 
Payroll Services.  Dep Chief said they are looking at outsourcing payroll services and 
has an appointment on Monday with ADP as recommended by Dave Moore.   Kay 
Doerr asked if they are contacting more than one vendor.  Dep Chief said they are 
looking at a range of services so they are getting educated on this at this point. 
 
3.  ASSET MANAGEMENT 
 
Chief Atkinson reported that the entire staff at Mundy Township put together a list of 
assets and received approval to get rid of some property and have some items on 
Bidcorp and getting rid of things they aren’t using and will be starting at Swartz Creek.   
 
4. METRO POLICE AUTHORITY 
 
Chief Atkinson related at a couple of meetings ago they had decided to change the 
name from Regional Police Authority of Genesee County to Metro Police Authority of 
Genesee County.  In the Board packet was information from Kevin Kilby on an 
amendment to establish it.  The first item is an amendment to the interlocal agreement.  
They will need to get Mr. Guigear and Mr. Krueger’s signature and the Boards will 
have to get a resolution approving this amendment.  Once this is completed Mr. Kilby 
will take this and register it with both the County and the State.  Chief Atkinson said 
the name change had already been approved and this was the paperwork needed to 
confirm the change.  Nothing else is needed by the Board except the signatures. 
 
5. PURCHASING POLICY 
 
Curt Porath introduced agenda item for Adam Zettel to present.  Mr. Zettel said the 
policy presented is a template modeled after the purchasing ordinance the City has 
modified for the Metro Police Authority.  The template contains different thresholds for 
departmental or authority purposes by staff versus bids and quotes and the process for 
retaining professional services, emergency purchases, cooperative purchases – all of 
which the Authority would benefit from.  Mr. Zettel suggested the Board look at it, get 
a 3rd party to look at it for additions or changes and suggested CPA Dave Moore look at 
it and make recommendations based on the structure of the Authority.   
 
After some discussion, Curt Porath asked if anyone wanted to make a motion regarding 
the policy.  Tonya Ketzler made motion to adopt purchasing policy as presented, Joe 
Oskey supported the motion.  Adam Zettel made note that the policy had the projected 
name on it.  MOTION CARRIED unanimously. 
 
6. UNIFORMS/VEHICLE GRAPHICS 
 

City Council Packet 108 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

4 
 

Curt Porath introduced the next item for Deputy Chief Clolinger’s presentation.  He 
related that there wasn’t much new to add other than work on design of patches and 
badges and looking at bids for uniform replacement.  The problem is that patches and 
badges will take 6-8 weeks to be made and an order can’t be put in until we have 
everything settled.  Curt Porath asked who was making the decision on the designs.  
Deputy Chief Clolinger said the Chief has the say in it with officers and Lieutenant 
having conversations about the design and they are looking at patches about the size of 
Swartz Creek’s current patch in blue with silver.  It would be brought back to the Board 
when a decision was made on the design that they wanted to use.  This is on the back 
burner for now because nothing can be done until a decision is made on the Authority.   
Chief Atkinson related they can continue to work in their current uniforms, but they 
would like the new graphics on the vehicles.  Mr Krueger asked if there were any 
common elements that could be used.  Deputy Chief Rick Clolinger said the goal is to 
purchase new.  They don’t want to be seen in different uniforms, but need to appear 
professional and outstanding.  They want to make a change in the material, leather gear 
should be the same, and there will be a cost factor.  He believes the department will 
look a lot better if all the uniforms are the same.   The departments have cleaned out all 
the old uniforms.  Vests were just purchased for Swartz Creek and a couple of years left 
on the lifespan for Mundy Township.  Mr Krueger asked if there were any items 
purchased by the Officers personally.  Deputy Chief Clolinger said that their shoes, 
socks, and t-shirts are purchased by the Officers and they are supplied with the shirts, 
pants, vest, all of the collar brass, badges and everything they wear on their shirts, coats, 
raincoats all of it’s purchased.  Kay Doerr asked where they are on coats and if they 
would all have to be purchased.  Deputy Chief Clolinger said we have some that can be 
used but eventually they will have to be purchased.  He further related that command 
staff will wear gold and officers will wear silver.  Mr Krueger asked if they wear hats.  
Deputy Chief Clolinger said hats are issued and styles are somewhat similar.  Chief 
Atkinson said that Dave Stamm from Grand Blanc Township had put together a good 
policy for hats.   
 
7. NATIONAL NIGHT OUT 
 
Chief Atkinson related that Camp 911 and Cops in the Park are great programs and we 
are going to continue those programs and we also have Home Depot Safety Day and 
we’re trying to keep our fingers in the community.  He said Lieutenant Bade is working 
on National Night Out and combing with a couple of other departments.   
 
Lt Bade said that last year Flint Township reached out to us after hearing about the 
consolidation efforts and wanted us to be a part last year in August.  Lt Bade said it is 
scheduled for September 13 this year and it’s a family event oriented towards kids with 
Mundy Township, Flint Township and Swartz  Creek PD’s and Fire Departments, EMS 
units, Ambulances, Paramedics, and State Police and allow the kids to look at and 
inspect everything.  He further related that Clio is expected to be there with their 

City Council Packet 109 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

5 
 

smokehouse and that McLaren will be there with the intoxication simulator, and a 
bounce house is being donated by retired Mundy Township officer Ron O’Neill and 
invited the Board to stop by at Flint Township PD on Norko. 
 
8. PM-AM 
 
Chief Atkinson related that he had a presentation last week and looking at this as a way 
of managing policies and procedures, training and training records in an organized 
fashion.  He related that they are looking at implementing this program.  It is for 
informational purposes at this point.  Curt Porath asked if the cost was minimal.  Chief 
Atkinson related that it was $1500/year but thinks it would be worth it and reduce 
liability.   
 
9. TIMELINE 
 
Curt Porath introduced the next agenda item being the timeline moving forward.  He 
said the hopefully within 2 weeks we would have the budget numbers and then the 
Board would have to approve it so it could be sent to the municipalities.  Chief 
Atkinson said we have to start looking at the timeline to wrap it up and looking for 
input from the Board.  Curt Porath suggested having the budget figures to the 
municipalities by October.   Mr. Krueger would like it earlier so there is time to make 
adjustments.  Juanita Aguilar interjected that the biggest contract negotiation is done 
but they may have to reach out to 3rd parties as to what further expenses there may be 
and 2 weeks is pushing it.  Curt Porath said that’s why he was looking at October.  
Chief Atkinson said he and Deputy Chief were looking at the calendar and think maybe 
the 21st.  Mr Krueger said it could then be brought to the City Council on the 26th.  Mr. 
Porath said then they would have 3 meetings to get it done which Mr Krueger and 
Tonya Ketzler agreed.  Kay Doerr pointed out we have a deadline on the 31st of October 
and that we would need another opportunity to re-up again looking at the deadline.  
Curt Porath is looking at if it doesn’t get done by the 24th of October, we’re probably 
dead in the water anyway.  Chief Atkinson asked if they wanted the 21st for scheduling 
the budget because we need for the interlocal, a date for a public hearing for the Police 
Authority, so he felt we could do the public meeting and Board meeting in one swipe 
and then it would give the opportunity in the next week to take it to the respective 
Boards.  He further related that would give a month to finish up everything to have it 
effective in October.  Deputy Chief Clolinger asked if the public hearing could be the 
same as the Board meeting or if they had to be separate which was acknowledged by 
several members of the Board that it could be the same. Joe Oskey asked if they’re 
talking about the 21st of September and he related that they have budget hearings 
coming up and should have them wrapped up at Mundy Township.  Tonya Ketzler 
said they go through October with budget hearings.   There was discussion among 
Board members about the worst case scenario and if the effective date can be set for 
January 1st , appointment of permanent Board members and coordination with the 

City Council Packet 110 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

6 
 

State.  Joe Oskey asked if there has to be some resolution after this budget goes through 
that there is an effective date of January 1st.  Adam Zettel said yes so bank accounts can 
be set up, and get insurance and things like that.  David Krueger asked if there was a 
possibility that there are other municipalities that want to get on board as of January 1st?  
Chief Atkinson related that there is one municipality.  Adam Zettel said that the budget 
will have the unit costs and the allocation between the two municipalities and if the 
Board enters into a contracted service for a 3rd city of township or whatever it is, then it 
would require a budget amendment, staffing changes or whatever is needed and that 
would be an Authority decision to contract the service and if that agency wants in the 
Interlocal Agreement that would be a process.  Joe Oskey said basically we were 
looking timeline at the budget, a resolution to give authority that we’re going to be 
permanent and what has to take place so that will be coming up and is there a 
resolution to deal with people joining and does the Board have to do anything of that 
nature.  Tonya Ketzler pointed out that would be up to the Authority Board and not the 
municipalities.   
 
After discussion by the Board about special meeting, Curt Porath asked for a motion to 
schedule the September 21st Special Meeting at a certain location.  Joe Oskey made a 
motion at the City of Swartz Creek on the 21st of September at 10:00 in the morning, Kay 
Doerr support.  No discussion.  MOTION CARRIED unanimously.  Curt Porath asked 
Chief Atkinson to take care of the paperwork.   No further comments on the timeline. 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Abrams said this was an ad-hoc committee with mere recommendations.  Board 
members said they were given authority to make the decisions as the Authority Board 
and given powers to make the decisions and that this is the Police Authority Board as a 
separate legal entity with all powers and no assets.  Mr. Zettel said that the Council will 
make a yes/no vote overall to proceed with the effective date and the transfer of assets.  
Mr. Abrams stated that there are 2 no votes right now and 2 new people coming on the 
Board in November.  Tonya Ketzler said that Board needs to be talking to them and 
doing their behind the scenes work to bring them around.  Mr. Zettel argued that 
nobody should be a yes or no vote period, because they haven’t looked at the full 
package.   
 
Juanita Aguilar asked for updates of information from Mundy Township.  Chief 
Atkinson said they would get with Shawna and get her the information.   
 
Tommy Butler said they need to go back to the City and look at what was done when 
they approved the Authority.  He said that this is not going to be easy and has been 
down this road before and the fun is starting out. 
 

City Council Packet 111 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

7 
 

Mr. Abrams continued that he doesn’t believe the Authority is legal until the whole 
thing is passed.  Curt Porath asked Chief Atkinson to get a legal opinion from Kevin 
Kilby.  Mr. Abrams questioned the date it was signed.  Mr. Zettel and Kay Doerr stated 
it was signed October 27, 2015 by Swartz Creek and November 2, 2015, by Mundy 
Township.  Mr. Abrams said he was going back to the Minutes because he doesn’t recall 
seeing it.  
 
There were no other comments by the public.  
 
Mr. Porath called for an adjournment and was reminded there was one more agenda 
item – comments from Board members.   
 
11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS/ADJOURN 
 
Deputy Chief Clolinger said he appreciated the opportunity to speak and is glad of 
where we’re at and a long grueling 2 years to get here. 
 
Curt Porath thanked Vane King for being there.  Mr. King said he thought it looks good 
and is impressed – that it’s going in the right direction.  Believes that it’s being done in 
the right way and setting the stage to tell the officers that too.  He likes it and what’s 
being done and its great there are other agencies wanting to get on board and that 
they’re leading from the top, but including the people on the bottom.   
 
Deputy Chief asked to add one more thing and that there was still the command staff 
contract to do, their civilian contracts and there is still some other work to do as well as 
Matt’s Contract.   
 
Kay Doerr said thank you to everyone around the table and to Vane for his input.  
Believes it’s valuable to get the expertise from the outside to look over everything.  
 
David Krueger said he was happy with the work and progress they’re seeing and 
makes him feel like it’s coming together and will be good for the Township and City 
and west side of the County.  He has to agree with the Chief, it’s time to pull the trigger 
on the Authority.   
 
Chief Atkinson thanked the Board.   
 
Curt Porath wanted to comment that he appreciates the command staff with all the day 
to day duties to accomplish, plus all this extra work on the negotiations that took up a 
lot of extra time and grief and thanks everyone working at the municipalities.  He 
encouraged everyone to keep working to see this come to fruition.   
 
Curt Porath asked if there was an objection to adjourning.  No objections.  

City Council Packet 112 October 10, 2016



  CORRECTED    

8 
 

 
Adjourned:  11:21 A.M. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 113 October 10, 2016



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK

SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION

STATUS REPORT

September 2016

1. COMPLETEDWORK-

*

*

Winchester Village has been the priority for all rehabilitation efforts; a majority of the collection
system in this area was constmcted in the rear yards making pipe replacement very costly.
Since 2008, nearly 22,000 feet of sanitary sewer main has been rehabilitated through the lining
process.

Recently Completed Projects-

- Sewer lining was completed on approximately 2,000 lineal feet of main between Oakview and
Durwood (see map below).

YOUNG

(j
6

0
<
o
0<

ORIVE

0<
)
0
2

LJ
U)

DU€jllo'6D' DAiVE'

lila 0?.?
e/,-

',- LINED SEWERSH % .b.

l i 1= m
pRIVEOAKVIEW

CHEmRFIELD

L

CHELMSFORD

m

ff?
?-l

S'>
4 ? ? ?4.:
l . ? .?

l,:',:,?,?.':oi'+i,':LJI?' .?

i

>

DRIVE

?
pRIVE

O

Y

L

Prepared by:

e ROX'%7E PROFESSIONAL
hE'f?I SERVICESCOMPANY

ROWE Professional Services Company S P.0. Box 3748S Flint, Ml 48502 S 810-341-7500City Council Packet 114 October 10, 2016



2. 2016/2017PROJECTS-

* Sewer lining will be completed on approximately 1,000 lineal feet of main located along the
Chesterfield corridor, approximately 1,500 lineal feet of main located between Chesterfield and
Chelmsford and approximately 1300 lineal feet of main between Greenleaf and Seymour (see map
below). Costs for sewer lining are estimated at $255,000.

O

?'VALLEmim

2i.

D?lVE DRI?E

O

tS

0

m

SEYMOUR ROAD

0
)O

Ill.C
ffi

O?
.l:)

l?

-+.
'?

l

GREENLEAF

0uRWOOD

DRIVE

)O.J

O.

Th

DRIVE

(

r

l

i

Z.
AllSl'nlll

?6?p
7VAV(]

0

4@

O@ea....
+

gO,
S,

% " 'p

z+

't % 1?
'k,. ..

Q4 '
r

d

j

DRI??E

3. FUTUREWORK-

* Future improvements are planned as shown on the attached ?Capital Improvement Plan" map.

Prepared by:

!J ROWE Pgophssionu
b?S SERVICES COMPANY

ROWE Professional Services Company S p.o. Box 3748S Flint, Ml 48502 S 810-341-7500City Council Packet 115 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 116 October 10, 2016



ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE Qty Item Qty Item Qty Item

A High Pressure Water Jet Cleaning. All Sizes FT 3.25$              -$                      -$                      -$                   
B Sanitary Sewer CCTV (Closed Circuit Television) Inspection recorded on DVD FT 1.25$              -$                      -$                      -$                   
C Sanitary Sewer Calcite Reaming -$                      -$                      -$                   

     Light - equal or less than 20% cross sectional area loss FT 4.00$              1638 6,552.00$             1066 4,264.00$             1293 5,172.00$           
     Heavy - greater that 20% cross sectional area loss FT 6.00$              -$                      -$                      -$                   

D Sanitary Sewer Reaming/Cutting Roots with Approved Reamers and Cutters -$                      -$                      -$                   
     Light - equal or less than 20% cross sectional area loss FT 4.00$              -$                      -$                      -$                   
     Heavy - greater that 20% cross sectional area loss FT 6.00$              -$                      -$                      -$                   

E
Reaming of Protruding Lateral utilizing approved remote controlled robotic reamer with 
CCTV assistance EA 500.00$          -$                      -$                      

F Lateral Reinstatement EA 500.00$          57 28,500.00$           17 8,500.00$             38 19,000.00$         
-$                      -$                      -$                   

A
Pipe point structural spot repair with Cured-In-Place pipe (inverted tube liner) as 
specified including: sewer cleaning, pre and post video inspection with DVD and report. -$                      
8" diameter - 3' to 10' length EA 2,500.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   
8" diameter - additional length greater than 10' FT 75.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
10" diameter - 3' to 10' length EA 2,500.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   
10" diameter - additional length greater than 10' FT 100.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                   
12" diameter - 3' to 10' length EA 2,750.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   
12" diameter - additional length greater than 10' FT 100.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                   
15" diameter - 3' to 10' length EA 3,000.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   
15" diameter - additional length greater than 10' FT 100.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                   
18" diameter - 3' to 10' length EA 3,500.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   
18" diameter - additional length greater than 10' FT 100.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                   

-$                      

A
Lateral sewer CCTV (Closed Circuit Television) Inspection through mainline sewer 
including DVD and report. EA 500.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                   

B

Installation of 6" Diameter inverted type CIPP Lateral Liner (up to R.O.W.) from mainline 
sewer, including vacumm excavation and installation of a clean out to surface.  
Preparatory work of cleaning andn removal of debris in the lateral and temporary rest EA 4,000.00$       -$                      -$                      -$                   

-$                      

A
Sanitary Sewer Pipe Joint Sealing with approved Sealant including testing and removal 
of excess grout. -$                      
8" Diameter JOINT 45.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
10" Diameter JOINT 45.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
12" Diameter JOINT 50.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
15" Diameter JOINT 55.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
18" Diameter JOINT 60.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   

-$                      -$                      -$                   
A Manhole to Manhole CIPP Lining for 8" Diameter Mains FT 36.00$            1638 58,968.00$           1066 38,376.00$           638 22,968.00$         
B Manhole to Manhole CIPP Lining for 10" Diameter Mains FT 38.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
C Manhole to Manhole CIPP Lining for 12" Diameter Mains FT 39.00$            -$                      -$                      655 25,545.00$         
D Manhole to Manhole CIPP Lining for 15" Diameter Mains FT 50.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   
E Manhole to Manhole CIPP Lining for 18" Diameter Mains FT 60.00$            -$                      -$                      -$                   

Area Totals 94,020.00$      51,140.00$      72,685.00$    

PART I - Cleaning, Video Inspection & Reaming

PART II - Structural Spot Repair as determined by Engineer

PART III - Sanitary Sewer Lateral Cleaning and Repairs

PART IV - Sanitary Sewer Joint Testing and Sealing

PART V - Structural CIPP Lining (Fully Deteriorated)

2016 / 2017 Project Estimate
ITEMIZED BID SHEET

SANITARY SEWER TRENCHLESS REHABILITATION
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK

27-Sep-16

Seymour / Greenlear MH 23 - MH 
19 

Chesterfield / Chelmsford MH 187 - 
MH 180 - MH 184

Chesterfield MH 192 - MH 188 - MH 
196

City Council Packet 117 October 10, 2016



 

 

 
 
 
 
September 20, 2016 
 
 
City of Swartz Creek 
8083 Civic Dr. 
Swartz Creek MI 48473 
 
 
Attn: Mr. Tom Svrcek 
Re: 2016 Prices 
 
As previously expressed, we have enjoyed working with you and the City of Swartz Creek on various sewer 
rehabilitation projects over the past several years.  Together we have overcome many challenges and have 
successfully met the needs of both the collection system as well as the residents of the City.   
 
We would like to express our gratitude for the professionalism and cooperation that we have encountered 
when working with you and your staff.  The positive environment along with the open lines of 
communication with your Public Works Department has helped our forces to be successful in meeting your 
objectives. 
 
Due to these positive experiences and cooperative working environment, we will continue to honor the 
existing unit prices and will meet or exceed all of the conditions / requirements you have come to expect 
from us.  
 
If you have any questions or require additional information please feel free to contact me directly.  We 
appreciate the work we have done with the City and look forward to continuing to work together in the 
future. 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

John Thompson 
Technical Representative 
 
 

City Council Packet 118 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 119 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 120 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 121 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 122 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 123 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 124 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 125 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 126 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 127 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 128 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 129 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 130 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 131 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 132 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 9 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 133 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 10 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 134 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 11 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 135 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 12 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 136 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 13 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 137 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 14 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 138 October 10, 2016



Miller

Bristol

City of  Swartz Creek 0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005
Miles ®Consumers Energy Proposed Regulator StationPlanning Commission 15 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 139 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 16 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 140 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 17 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 141 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 18 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 142 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 19 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 143 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 20 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 144 October 10, 2016



Planning Commission 21 October 4, 2016

City Council Packet 145 October 10, 2016



PRELIMINARY ONLY

Consumers Energy

Miller & Bristol Regulator Sta on

Proposed 2017 Construc on

Drawing provided as preliminary conceptual design. Speci c eleva ons to be added in approved for

construc on drawings.

8/30/16

Planning Commission 22 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 146 October 10, 2016



____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

Adam Zettel, AICP 
City Manager/Zoning Administrator 

810.635.4464 
azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org 

 
 

 
Date: September 27, 2016

Attention: Swartz Creek Planning Commission

Subject: Second Review
Special Land Use (Consumers Energy): Essential Public Service  
Parcel: 6133 Bristol Road, PID 58-31-526-010
See attached, undated maps and application

Dear Chairman and Commissioners:

City staff has reviewed the above application submitted by Consumers Energy to install 
gas regulation equipment and related site landscaping, said improvements being found to 
constitute an Essential Public Service as regulated by Article 30 of the city’s zoning 
ordinance. This is a follow-up review based upon additional comments and submitted 
materials stemming from the September 6, 2016 meeting of the planning commission.

The property is zoned R-1 (Single Family Residential, which permits essential public 
services as a Special Land Use).

APPLICATION SUBMISSION

The application for the special land use was submitted by Consumers Energy.  The 
application was accompanied by various maps, images, and schematics that constituent 
a site plan. Additional materials and comments make the site plan sufficient for review 
by staff.

GENERAL STANDARDS REVIEW COMMENTS

The special land use application has been reviewed utilizing the general standards 
outlined in Section 30.02 of the Swartz Creek Zoning Ordinance.  The Planning 
Commission shall grant special land use approval if these standards are met. 

Planning Commission 23 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 147 October 10, 2016



October 4, 2016
Planning Commission
Consumers Energy Special Land Use
Page 2 of 6 

____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

1. Be consistent with the goals, objectives, and future land use plan described in the 
City of Swartz Creek Master Plan.

Finding: No Adverse Findings

Essential services, including the gas regulation equipment, are a necessary facet of 
any urban area. The master plan and zoning recognize this, thereby enabling their 
placement in residential areas under certain conditions. The location selected is on a 
larger, wooded parcel that is adjacent to a commercial site.  

2. Be consistent with the stated intent of the zoning district.

Finding: No Adverse Findings

This district is designed to be composed of low density residential home 
development. The density of development within this district is less intense than in 
the R-2 District to recognize existing lot sizes found in areas affected by the district. 
The regulations are intended to stabilize, protect and encourage the residential 
character of the district and prohibit activities not compatible with a residential 
neighborhood. Development is limited to single-family dwelling plus such other uses 
as schools, parks, churches and certain public facilities which serve residents of the 
district.

Gas regulation equipment could be considered as a necessary public facility. 
However, its application and form at this location will be crucial to ascertaining 
compatibility with residential character. The petitioner has taken steps to add and 
retain screening, upgraded fence materials, and eliminate gas releases from the site 
in order to better fit in the surroundings. 

3. Be designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to be compatible with, and not 
significantly alter, the existing or intended character of the general vicinity in 
consideration of environmental impacts, views, aesthetics, noise, vibration, glare, air 
quality, drainage, traffic, property values or similar impacts. 

Finding: No Adverse Findings

The site is property sized and is located in an area with good major street access. It 
is also adjacent to a commercial property. The facilities meet setback requires, are 
property fenced, and properly screened. There are areas in which screening could 
still be a an issue (east end by gate and west end where landscaping is to be 
removed. Concerns related to air quality and property values have been addressed 

Planning Commission 24 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 148 October 10, 2016



October 4, 2016
Planning Commission
Consumers Energy Special Land Use
Page 3 of 6 

____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

by the petitioner through the screening of the facility and the elimination of relief 
valves.

4. Will not significantly impact the natural environment. 

Finding: No Adverse Findings

No issues are identified. 

5. Be served adequately by public facilities and services, such as police and fire 
protection, drainage structures, water and sewage facilities, refuse disposal and 
schools. 

Finding: No Adverse Findings

The site is served with required public utilities.  The proposed use should not have 
an adverse impact upon public services.  We defer any additional comments on the 
adequacy of public utilities to the City Engineer.  Input from the City Fire Chief and 
Police Chief will also been considered.

6. Be of a nature that will make vehicular and pedestrian traffic no more hazardous 
than is normal for the district involved, taking into consideration vehicular turning 
movements, proximity and relationship to intersections, adequacy to sight distances, 
location and access of off-street parking and provisions for pedestrian traffic.

Finding: No Adverse Findings

Ingress and egress shall be accommodated by a largely concealed 14 foot limestone 
drive way. It is expected that the limited site access needs will pose no 
unreasonable impacts.

7. The proposed use shall be such that the location and height of buildings or 
structures, and the location, nature and height of walls, fences, and landscaping will 
not interfere with or discourage the appropriate development and use of adjacent 
land and buildings or unreasonably affect their value.

Finding: No Adverse Findings

Screening for this site is required, and details have provided regarding the intention 
to retain any site landscaping. As noted, the planning commission should consider 
additional plantings for the open areas on the east and west sides.

Planning Commission 25 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 149 October 10, 2016



October 4, 2016
Planning Commission
Consumers Energy Special Land Use
Page 4 of 6 

____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

8. The proposed use shall be designed, located, planned, and operated to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare.

Finding: Subject to planning commission review

The general location and scale of the site appears appropriate. However, visibility of 
the site features is still concerning. The structures proposed are not of a residential 
character and must therefore be well screened for all four seasons. The plans
indicate openings on the east and west end where no screening is 
proposed/existing.  Note that this regulator would eliminate the underground 
regulator on Miller Road, thereby reducing ambient gas releases, eliminating a 
structure in the right of way, and reducing the aesthetic impact of that feature.

SPECIFIC STANDARDS REVIEW COMMENTS

The following sections identify specific requirements (Section 30.09.B.38) which shall be 
complied with by individual special land uses, as determined by the planning 
commission and city council. Some or all of the specific requirements may be waived by 
city council upon a determination that the requirement(s) is not necessary or relevant.

a) Such uses may be permitted when operating requirements necessitate that the 
facility be located at the subject site to serve the immediate vicinity.

Finding: Compliant

Based upon the testimony of the CMS, this site (near the existing facility) is a 
crucial part of the network in which pressure between networks requires 
reduction.  The need to place this site outside of the right of way does make this 
site strong candidate, though alternates may still be avialable. 

b) Electric or gas regulator equipment and apparatus shall be setback a minimum of 
30 feet from all lot lines or equal to district setbacks, whichever is greater. They 
cannot be located in the front yard setback.

Finding: Compliant

The noted setbacks are adequate.

c) The buildings or structures shall be architecturally compatible with the surrounding 
buildings and shall be of brick construction, where practical. 

Finding: Not In Compliance or Not Applicable

Planning Commission 26 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 150 October 10, 2016



October 4, 2016
Planning Commission
Consumers Energy Special Land Use
Page 5 of 6 

____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

The petitioners indicate that no structures can be placed to house the piping 
systems and cabinets, making the structure requirements not applicable to the 
facility components. If masonry structures could house this equipment, they 
should be considered. 

d) Storage yards must be located on a minimum lot size of three acres.

Finding: Not Applicable

This site has not been identified as a storage yard. 

e) A vinyl coated (black or brown/green or blue) chain link fence six feet in height 
shall be constructed on the boundary property lines.

Finding: Compliant

The plans indicate a six foot high black PVC coated chain link fence.

f) All sides of the development not abutting a major thoroughfare shall be provided 
with a 20-foot wide greenbelt planting, and/or a minimum six-foot high fence or wall, 
so as to obscure from view all activities within the development. The greenbelt shall 
meet or exceed the standards set forth in Article 28. Where adjoining a residential 
district, a wall or evergreen hedge six feet in height shall be erected along any 
common lot line. Such fence or wall shall be continuously maintained in good 
condition.

Finding: Compliant

Existing vegetation is onsite and is noted for retention along the roadway. No 
additional greenbelt is proposed. 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff finds no areas of noncompliance or adverse impact, save for a need for additional 
vegetative screening. There is still concern that the proximity may be detrimental to 
adjacent home sites. The planning commission should consider additional screening, 
the possibility of mason structures to house some or all of the components, and the less 
objective impacts on the neighborhood values.   

Please contact me directly if you have any comments or inquiries on the matter.  I am 
happy to receive comments in person, in writing, over the phone, or via e-mail.  

Planning Commission 27 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 151 October 10, 2016



October 4, 2016
Planning Commission
Consumers Energy Special Land Use
Page 6 of 6 

____________________________________________________________________________________
8083 Civic Drive

Swartz Creek Michigan 48473
Phone:  (810)-635-4464  Fax:  (810)-635-2887

www.cityofswartzcreek.org  ftp://cityofswartzcreek.org

Sincerely,

Adam H. Zettel, AICP
Zoning Administrator
City of Swartz Creek
810.287.2147
azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org

Planning Commission 28 October 4, 2016City Council Packet 152 October 10, 2016



Comparison of SIB Loan and Bonding Options Road Funding Plan of $3,000,000 
 
 
Data know September 26, 2016 
 
SIB Loan $1,600,000  Interest Rate 2.5%  10 Year Duration with annual payments 
Years 1-9 annual loan repayment amount of $178,164.76 Year 10 final payment $177,701.42 
Rowe Engineers anticipates additional cost to the project if prevailing wage required as a condition of 
the loan $216,000.  This option would require a single audit cost approx. $8,000 
 
Juanita and I reviewed the loan information. The Cost breakdown is as follows: 
 
Loan Amount $1,600,000.00 
Interest  $   181,184.26 
City Match         $1,400,000.00 
Subtotal $3,181,184.26 
w/Prev Wage     $   216,000.00 
w/ Audit $       8,000.00 
TOTAL  $3,405,184.26  
 
 
Issue Bonds for $1,600,000 Interest Rate 3.0% 10 Year Duration with annual payment 
Cost to issue $50,000 
 
Bond Principal $1,600,000.00 
Interest  $   275,688.11 
City Match $1,400,000.00 
Bond Cost $     50,000.00 
TOTAL  $3,325,688.11 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 153 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 154 October 10, 2016



City Council Packet 155 October 10, 2016


	2016-10-10, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2016-09-26 September 26 Council Minutes
	e ticket cover
	E Tickets
	Road Striping
	2017 CDBG Application - Group 2
	Budget Report
	RevenueandExpenditureReport

	Check Register
	PD Report
	Sept DPS Reports
	  Monthly Permit List  
	  Inspection List  
	Certificates with Inspections
	Enforcements by Category with Details
	FANG REPORT
	10076378 - 68991 - First Amendment - FINAL
	Rent abatement II
	Minutes 2016-10-05
	8-24-16 CORRECTED MINUTES OF THE POLICE AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING
	sewer report
	master plan update 2016-Model to city
	Sewer - 2016 _ 2017 - Project Estimate 2
	Swartz Creek - Offer to Extend Prices
	Med MJ
	CE Gas Reg
	Comparison of SIB Loan and Bonding Options Road Funding Plan
	CE Notice



